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Independent Auditors' Repori

To the Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma Limited

Heport on the Financial Statements

Opinion

Al the request of Ajanta Pharma Limited (APL), the Holding Company of Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
(*APUL" or ‘the Company”), registered as a limited liability Company in New Jersey, United States of
America, we have sudied the accompanying financial stalements of the Company, which comprise the
Bialance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
refermed to as  the Ind AS financial statements™), prepared and presented solely to facilitate the
preparation of the consolidated financial stalements of the Holding Company - Ajants Pharma Limited
(*APL"), m terms of section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 20013 (the “Act™) and in nccordnnce with the
requirement of the Schedule 11T of the Act.

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesasd financial siaterments give a irue and fair view in conformity with the basis of preparation as set
out in note I of the Mmancial statements and Group Accounting Policies of Ajanta Pharma Limited, of
the state of affairs of the APUIL as on 31 March 2021 and its profit (including other comprehensive
income}, the changes in equity and cash flow for the vear ended on thal date.

Basks for (ipinion

We conducted our audit i sccordance wilh the Standards on Auditing (SA) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") and in porticular 5A B0 “Special Considerations — Aundit of
Financinl Statements prepared in sccordance with Special Purpose Frameworks, Our responsibilities
under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Eihics Bsved by the Instiiute of Charlered Accounianis of India and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibililies in accordance wath these requiremients. We believe that the audil evidence we have
obtained i sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our audit apinion

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company, APUI's management and their Board of Directors are responsible for the
prepartion of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting policies followed by the Holding Company - Ajanta Pharma Limited, in preparing its
financial statements (“Giroup Accounting polices™),
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Independent Auditors” Report (Continued)
Ajanta Pharma Limited

Management Respansibility for the Financial Statements 0 omtinwed)

This responsibility also inchudes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assels
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policis; making judgments and estimaies thai are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial conrols, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant fo
the preparation and presentation of the financial statemenis that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, Holding Company, APUT's management and the Board of
Directors of Holding Company and APUIL are responsible for assessing the Company's shility 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
Cedse operations. of has no realistic alemnative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors is also responsible for oversecing the Company's financial reporting
process,

Auditors” Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are 1o obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not & guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will abways detect o material misstatement when it exists.
Missiatements can arse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audsl m accordance with SAs, we ecxercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identsfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
[raud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sullicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting & material misstalement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal conirol.

= Obtain on understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order 10 design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opimion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contnol.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eshmates and related disclosures made by mamagement,
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ajanta Pharma Limited
Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financhal Statements (Comtirmued)

»  Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriaimty exists related to evenis
or conditions that may cast sigmificant doubt on the Company's ability 10 conlinds as 3 going
concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our
auditor's report o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
insdequate, to modify our opimon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
o thee duie of our suditor's ieport, Hewever, futere events or conditions may couss the Company

1o cease 10 CONLINUE 45 8 gOiNg CORCErN.

FEvalaate the overall presemtation, structure and content of the financial satements, nchuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represant the underlying transactions and events in 4
manner that achieves presentation in accordance with the basis of preparation as sef out i Mote 2 to the
Timaenan] staleincnts.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and stenificant sudit findings, inclading any significant deficiencies in inernal control that
we idenlify during our audil,

diher matier

Without modifying our opinion, we draw atiention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which
describes the basis of preparstion. These financial sistements do not constitute a set of statutory
fitancial statements in pocordance with the local laws in which the Company iz incorporaied and are
prepared for the sole purpose of consolidation of the financial statements of APUL with the Holding
Company — Ajanta Pharma Limiled

ForBS R & Co, LLF
hartered Aceouniants
Firm's Registration Nao: 101245W/W- 100022

s
Srecja

Partner

Mumbai Membership Mo: 111410
0 Ageral 2021 UM 21 11 141 0A A A A APA220



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Stalcment of Profit and Loss Aceount
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Mofes (o the Finaneial Statements a5 on 31 March 202]

1. Corporate Information

Ajants Phamma USA Ine. is a limited liskility company incorpomied and domiciled in United States
of Amenca and 5 a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Lid, India. The address of its
registered office 15 located af 3440, US Highway, 22, East Bndgewater, New Jersey GEROT, USA,

Company is primasily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.
2. Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in sccordance with the Company accounting policies as
adopted by its Holding Company. Ajania Pharma Limited (Ajoma) which s as per the Indizn
..ﬁ.m:mmﬁu! Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companics (Indian Accounting Standands) Rules, Hils
notified under Section 133 of the Indinn Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act™).

These financial statements are “special purpose financial statements” and do not constitwle a set of
sinmtory financial stemems in accordance wiath the local laws in which the Company is
incorporaied and are prepared for the sole purpose of the Congolidation of Ind AS financial
statements of the Company with Ajanta.

The financial statements have been prepared on an scerual basis and under the hisoncal cost basis,
except stherwise siated,

The Financial Staement for the vear ended 31 March 2021 have been reviewed by the Audht
Commitiee and subsequently approved by Company’s Board of Directors a1 it"s meeting held on 20
Apnl 2021.

1. Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management 10 maks
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reporied amounts of assets, Habilities, mcome and expenses and the disclosure of contingemt
habilities on the date of the financial statements. Actal results could differ from those cstimates,
Estimates and under lying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Any revision lo
accounting cslimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in & material
adjustment in the vear ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

Properiy, Plant and cquipment

Determination of the estimated wselul lives of tangible assets and the assessment as lo which
components of the cost may be capitalised Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life
preseribed in Schedule 11 of the Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that
prescribed in Schedule 11, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the
naset, the estimated usage of the ssae, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of
replacement, anticrpaied bechmological changes, manufaciurers” warranties and mainlenance suppon



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Motes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

Iniangible Asveis

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining wsefil lives of Intangible assels, Management
belicves thas assignod usefiul lives ane reasonable,

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry amy interest and are <iated at their normal value a8 reduced by
sppropriale allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual 1rade recelvables are writien
off when management deems them nod collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credir loss
mindel.

The impaimment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption sbowt risk of default and
expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and sclecting the inpuis 1o the
impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as forward
kenking estimates at the end of sach repoming period.

Allowances for invenlorics

Management reviews the invemory age listing on a periodic basis. The review involves comparison
of the carrying value of the aged invertory items with the respective nei realizable value. The
purpose is 1o ascentain whether an allowance 1% required 1o be made in the financial s1aemennt for
any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management is satisfied that adequue allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial statemenis

Recognition of deferred tax asscis and income fax

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences o the exient that it 1
probable that taxuble profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be wiilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognising
defiermed 1ax asets,

Management judgment is required for the caleulation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax
assets and Habilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of
deferred 1ax assets, The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead
to significant adjustment 1o the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Hecagnition and messurement of other provisioeg

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the asscssment of the probatality
of wn outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known ol the balance sheer
date. The sctunl ouiflow of resources at a fulure date may, therefore, vary from the figure included
in other provisions

Contlngencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in
respect of contingencies'clainylitigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the
putcome of pending matters with sccuracy.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ("CGL") exeeeds
i1s recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. [n calculating
the value in use, certain assumplions e reguined to be made m rezpect of highly uncertom malters,
including management’s expeciations of growth in ERITDA, long tenm growth rates: and the
selection of discount rates 10 reflect the risks involved

-1



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

Amounts deducted from revenue for the projected chargeback, sales returns, rebates and
Medleald
The significant adjustments 1o the revenue are broadly explained beclow:

{a} A chargeback is a claim made by the wholesaler for the difference between the prices at which
the product is initially invoiced to the wholesaler and the net price ot which it is agreed to be
procured from the company. Provision for chargeback is calculated on the basis of historical
experience and specific terms in the agreements

ib} Sales return is variable consideration that 15 recognised and recorded based on historical
experience, market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The
methodobogy and assumprions used to estimate relurns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line
with trade practices, historical trends, past experience and projected markel conditions,

() Proviston for rebate is calculated on the basis of histoncal experience and specific terms in the
agreements. Charge back, rebotes, retamns and medioaid payments are varizble consideration that is
recognised and recorded based on historical expenience, market conditions and specific contractual
terms. The methodology and assumptions used to estimate rehates and refums are monitored 2l
adjusted regularly in line with conractual and legal obligations, trade praciices historical trends, pust
experience and projected market conditions,

id) Following a decrease in the price of a product, the Company generally grants customers a “shell
stock adiustment” for a customer's existing inventory for the mvolved product. Provisions for shelf
stock adjostments are determined at the time of the price decline or at the point of sale, if the impact
of a price decline on the products sobd can be reasonably estimated based on the cuslomer's
invemtory levels of the relevant product.

4. Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD) which is also the functional
currency. All the amounts have been ounded off to the nearest USD, unless otherwise indicated

. Current / non=current classification
An entity shall classify an asset as current when-
(&) it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in iis normal operating cycle,
(b} it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading,
{ch it expects 1o realise the asset within twelve months after the reperting period; or

{d} the asset is cash or o cosh equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or i
o setibe a liability for at Jeast twelve months afier the reporting period.

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current.

An entity shall classify a lishility as current when-

{a) it expects 1o settle the Labslity in its normal operating cycle;
(1) it holds the lishility primarily for the purpose of trading;

() the liability is due to be sctiled within twelve months afier the reporting penod, o Eﬂ:’)‘k



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

{d) it does not have an unconditional nght 10 defer semtlement of the liability for al least iwelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its scttlement by the issuc of equity instruments do not affect it
classification.

An entity shall classify all other lisbilities as non-cument.

Operating Cyele
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assels For provessing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating
cyche s twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and
AOn-CUrTent.

Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated a1 historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the items. Subscquent costs are included
in the assets corrying amount or recognised s o separate asscl as appropriate, only when it 15
probable that futune economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straighi-line method 1o write ofT the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their catimated uscial life as follows:

Useful Life
7.5 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings | 3-8 vears
Computer Software's | 5 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at cach end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an 2sset is greater than its estimated necoverable
amount, it is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
neluded in the stnrement of profit or loss,

Intangible Assets

Intangible asscts are recognised when it is probable that the fumre cconomic benefits that are
attributable 10 the asmes will fow 1w the Company and the cost of the assels can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less nccumulated amorisation and impairment losses, if any.
Internally gencrated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit and loss in the perbod in which the expenditure
is incurred

Software is amonised over their estimated useful life on straight line basis from the date they are
wyailable for miended use, subject to impairment lest,
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The amortisation pericd and the amortisation methed for an intangible assets with s finite useful hie
are reviewed al lenst ot the end of each reporting persod, Changes in the expected useful hie or the
cxpected paniern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 1o
madify the amomisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treatedd 8 changes in accounting
estimabes,

Gains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asscis are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profil and boss when the assets 15 derccognised,

Impairment on non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed af
cach reponting date 1o determine whether there is any mdication of impairment. Il any such
indication exisis, then the asset’s recoverable amount is cstimated.

For impairment testing, asscts that do not generate independent cash inflows {i.e. corporale assets)
are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets of
CGlls

The recoveroble amount of @ CGLU s the higher of its valug in use and s fair value less costs to sell
Valoe in use is hased on the estimated future cash flows, discounted 1o their present value wang &
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specific 1o the CGLL

An impairment loss is recognised if the camrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimaled
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGL (or group of CGLs) on a pro msta basis,

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior
periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or mo lomger exists, An impurment logs s reversed if there hag been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amournt does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Financinl lnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
linhility or equity instrament of another entity.

Financial Asseis

Classification

Company classifies finencial assets as subsequently measured al amortised cost, far value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows charactenstics of the financial assct.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financinl assets are recognised initinlly a1 fair value plus, in the cose of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, ransaction costs that are anribuiable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.
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Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categorics:
¥ Financial assers ar fiair value (FVTEL / FYTOCT)
% Finoncial sssets ot amorised cost

When assets are measured at fair value, going and losses are cither recogmised in the statement of
profit and loss (Le. fair valwe throwgh profit or loss (FYTPL)), or recogniscd in other comprehensive
ircoiee (Le. e value thivugh oher comprehensive income (FYVTOCT)).

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write dewn for impairment, if any)

Financial asse1s are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is 1o bold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractoal erms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assels are subscguently measured ol amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impaimment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit wnd loss,

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through (ther Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCT)
Finaneial asgers under this category are measured initially as well as at cach reporting date at {air
value, when asset 13 beld within a business model, whose objective 1% 1o hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognied
in the other comprehensive imcomse.

Financial Assets measured at Falr Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL"™):

Financinl assets under this category are measured indtially as well as at each reporting duse at fair
vitlue with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has trunsferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assels

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for
mcasurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
el Erabe recevahles,

Financial Liabilitics

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
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Initial Recognition and Measarement

All financial liahilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, berrowings and
payables, net of directly attnibutable transaction costs.

Financial lisbilitics include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financinl instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial lisbilities held for wrading
and financial liabilities designated upon mitial recognition as at fair vidue through profit or boss

Interesi-bearing loans and bomrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised m profit or koss when the
limhilitics are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amaortised cost is caleulated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amonisation is included as finance costs in the statement off profit and boss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial lisbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lendes
on substansially different terms, or the terms of an existing lisbility are substantially modificd, such
an cxchange or modification is treatod as the derecognition of the ongmal hability and the
recogrition of & new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured i the bower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventorics is
based on the moving weighted aversge basis, and includes expenditure incumred in scquiring the
inventorics and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimaied selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
selling expenses,

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-flem basis. The Company
considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventories, product discontinuation, price changes
and other factors which impact the company’s business in determining the allowance for obsolete,
non-salesble and slow, non-moving inventories. The company considers the above factor and adjusts
the inventory provision to reflect its actual performance on actual basis. Goods in transit are valued
at actual cost incurmed up to the date of balance sheet.

Cash and cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash &t bank including faed
deposithighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounis of cash and which are subject to an nsignificant risk of

changes in valwe.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivelents consist of cash and shori-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an
integral part of the group's cash management.
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6.6

6.7

Cash Flow Statemenl

Cash flows are reporied using the indmrest methad, whereby net profit before tax s adjusted for the
effects of transactions of & non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associsted with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activitics of the Company are
segregaled. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are incladed as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpesc of
statement of cash flow.

Forelgn Currency Transactions

Transactions in forcign cumencies are translated into the Company's functional cumency @t the
exchange rates 81 the dates of the imnsactions,

Munsetary assets and lisbilitics denominated in foreign currencies are tmnslated imin the functional
currency at the exchange rate ai the reporting dale. Non-monetary asscts and liabilitics that are
measured a1 fair value in & forcign cumrency are translated inte the functional curreacy at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Mon-monctary assets and lisbilities that are
measurcd based on historical cost in a Foreign cumency are not translated, Foreign carrency
enchange differences are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Exchange differences arising on the setilement of monetary ilems or on translating monglary iemns
at rates different from those at which they were translated on initinl recognition during the period o
in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Less in the pened in
which they arise. When a gain or loss on a nom-monctary item is recogniscd in Crher
Comprehensive Income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on 8 non-monctary item is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of thal gain or loss is recognised in
Staterment of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Gonds
The Company applied Ind AS [ 15 using the modified retrospective approach,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which 1=
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of extimated returns and taxes collected from
customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collecied. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available o the customer.

The transaction price is documented on the sabes invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer

The consideration can be fixed or varisble. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not oceur
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Interest income is recognised on 1ime propartion basis. Insurance and other claims are recognised as
a revenue on cerainty of receipt o prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes
are accounted 1o the extent considered receivable,

Dividend income 15 recognised when the Entity’s right 1o receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Emplayes Beneflis

Sheri-term Benefits - The Company recognizes & lisbility net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the sccounting peniod. Short-term benefits given

by the Company 1o its emplovees include solaries and wages, social security contributions, Medicare
contributions, and other non-monetary benefita. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paidy if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount os a result
of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-Emplovment Benefits — The Company provides a 201(k) retrement program for full-time
employees who are 21 years of age or older. Eligible employees are entitled to participate in the
company offered plan with an option to contribute up the maximum 3% of ennual base salary. For
employees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as determined by the
Federal Internal Revenue Service (Foderal), the annual APUT comribution will be capped at 3% of
the Federal allowed anmual compensation limits. Al contributions are 100% vested immediately 1o
the employes

Share-based compensation

Employees Stiock Options Plans (“ESOPs™x The gran! date fair value of options granted 1o
employees Is recognized as an employee expense, with 2 comesponding increase in equity, over the
period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options, The expense is recorded
for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the sward was, in subsiance. multiple awards.
The company recognizes compensation expense relating 1o share-based payments in net profit using
fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Sharc-Based Payment, The ESOPs (shares of holding

company ) are granted to the employees of the company.

Provisions (sther than emploves henefiis)

A provision ks recognised if, as o resub of u past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligatien that can be estimated relinbly, and it i probable that an ouflow of economic

benefits will be required 1o sctile the obligation. Frovisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash Nows (representing the best estimate of the expenditre required 1o setile the
present obligation at the balance sheot date) at a pre-tax rate that reflecis cument market asscssmenis
of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the labikity. The unwinding of the discount i
recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs comprise of interest and other cosss that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Bormowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, comstruction or
production of an asset that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Transaction costs are charged 1o statement of profit and loss s financial expenses
over the term of bormowing.
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Lease

The determination of whether an arrangensent is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date, whother ful fllment of the arangemen: is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assols or the amangement conveys a right to use the asset, oven if thot right is pot

explicitly specified in an amrangement.
Earnings Per Share

Basic camings per equity share 15 computed by dividing the net profit anributable to the equity
bolders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dunng the
period. Diluted carmings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit ansibutable 1o the
equity holders of the company by the weighted avernge number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
couild have been ssued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value, Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
anless tssued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for cach
period presented

Income Taxcs

Income 1ax expense comprises current and deferred income tax,

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extem
that it relates to ilems recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amoum
expected 1o be paid o or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country s tax rics
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date,

Deferred income fax nssets and labilities are recognized for all temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and lLiabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial stolements,
Dheferred tax asscls are reviewsd al each reporting date and are reduced 1o the exient that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if there is & currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention o settle on a net basis, 10 realise the asscts and scitle the liabilities simultaneoushy.

Deferred income tax assets and labilites are measured using respective Country’s tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacied or substantively enacied by the balance sheet date and are expected 1o
apply 1o taxable income in the vears m which those temporary differences are expected o be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income 1ax assets and liabilities is
recogrized as income or expense in the period that includes the emactment or the substantive
enactment dale. A deferred income 1ax asset is recognized 1o the exient that it iz probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax Liabilities, where i1 has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either 10 setile on a et
haisis, or 1o realize the asset and serle the liability sinultaneously.

Deferred income taxes are nol provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where it is
expected that the camings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foresecable future.

o
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Dividends 1o Shareholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders in recognised as a linbility in the perind in which
the dividends s approves by ihe sharcholders, Any imterim dividend paid i= recogreed on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

Ceneral

Provisions (legal and consiructive} are recognised when the Group has a present obligation ({legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provigions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to i
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to sestle the obligation &t the
halance sheet date. These are reviewed o each balance sheet date and adjusted 1o reflect the current
best estimates,

If there is any cxpectasion that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a scparate assct butl only when the reimbursement is vinually certain, The expense
relating 1o & provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.,

If the effect of the time value of moncy is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
mte that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, the
merease in the provisson due to the passage of time is recognised as a fimance cosL.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

* A prescnt obligation arising from past evenis, when il is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required 1o sertle the obligation;
A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliahle estimates 13 possible;
A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote,

Contingent liahilitics are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingenl assels
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financinl Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (met of advances) issued 1o partics for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable opernting leate.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet daie.

Fair value mexsurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at coch balance sheet
dute in accordence with Ind AS 113,

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the staterment of financial position:

« Derivative financial instruments are measured o1 fair value received from Bank.

&  Mumal Funds are mecasured at Garr valises &g pet Met Asgset Value I:Hﬂ"lr}-

» Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Vahuation Report

e
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Fair vahue is the price that would be received o sell an asset or sektle a linbiliy in an ordinary
transaction bebween morket participands at the measurement daie.

The fair value of an asset or a hability 18 measured using the assumptions that market participams
would wse when pricing the asset or Hability, assuming that market participanis act i their ceonomac
best interes.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ahility to
gencrale economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
murket participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuat:on techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimiging the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and Hiabilitees for which fair value i measured or disclosed in the financial staiements are

cutegorised within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, bazed on the lowest level input that

i significant fo the fair value measurement &2 8 whole:

e Level | — Quoeted (unadjusted) market prices in octive markets for identical asscts or Habilides.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level imput that is significant o the fair
value measurement is dircetly or indirectly observable,

# Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowess level input that is significant o the fair
wiiliie measuicmeiy i unifmcrvable

For azscls and hatalities that are recognised i the Minancial statemenis on o recurring basis, the
Company determines whether iransfers hove occurmed between kevels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorsation (bised on the Jowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fuir value desclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
linbilities on the basts of the nature, characteristhes and risks of the asset or lability amd the level of
the fair value hierarchy os explained above,

Recent accounting pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporaie Affuirs ("MCA™) through a notification, amended
Schedule 1T of the Companics Act, 2013, The amendments revise Division 1, 11 and 111 of Schedule
Il and are applicable from April 1, 2021, Key amendments relating to Division Il which relate 1o
companies whose financial statements ase required 10 comply with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2005 are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be scparatcly disclosed under the head ‘financeal Habilities®, duly
distinguashed 08 curment or non=current.

* Certain additional disclosures in the siatement of changes in eguity such as changes in equity share
capital due to prior period ermors and restated bolances wt the beginnimg of the current reporiing
period,

« Bpecified format for disclosure of sharcholding of promoters.

%
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» Specified format for ageing schedule of wade receivables, rade payables, capital work-in-progress
and intangible aszet under devielopment.

* If & company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which i1 was bormowed from banks
and financial institutbons, then disclosure of detnils of where it has been used.

» Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved
schemes of armngements, compliance with number of luyers of companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, lcans and advances to promoters, directors, key manageral
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held ete.

Stmemant of profit and boss:

= Additionnl disclosures relating to Corporate Socinl Responsibality (CSR), undischised income and
crypte or virtual currency specificd under the head “asdditional information’ in the notes formang pan
of the standalone financial stalements.

The amendments are extensive and the group will evaluaie the same o give effect o them os
required by law



CIC LT E .m : =1
i) LA R [ Lo L i
| mE e | ey | se—y H “l.-..._. " [ _ﬂ..n_lll _ M g ey e
-
O —r R T . =
1 I
T =TT T T - AT i e |
-
i L 4§ Arap L4
L LT
- L BT o Rl
L= 1 i PR —..I_- Rl e me—
- p— = — - — =
4 E - e
oo - it A | [ i ] u et ] (==}
- i [l b L Rl = [ e e
i L gl [T 4] - s g
[ g -4 W R =y
T 1 — L . __IaM
] e e T i ey e =4 i e T ey | e | ey | osesh w BeEE ary
I m—— I ey T
g
il R N T
(] - - o - - imnE e meralsm | 2
= [wwan wis | rim e
[ e ] - i | -iow i [
i e CON [ji0 O
R o L
”....I % hm FirrT T m =
R T - e -, - e
o - J - i Lt
iy it i ]
e et en | sy |y | ey | iy Lmpry gy — .
Ay [ES
momrn s g e B - il e g i
(15, SR
BT
I[uSBARE Y | A I PR | M3 G e



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc
Naotes ta the Financial Sratements (Continued)
al 3 Mwrch 2027
[:mtnn' LSy
31 March 2021 31 March 20210
LIk 1 LISI
B Defered tax assets (net)
The wix efeces of wign|fcan iesmparary difissence tha resulied in defemed (my asiel and labiliies
ad a description of tha created these differenee in geven below: (refer ol 38)
Tax eTicet o iscmss conatiiubmg - Delorned lax asssis
Lzave Emcashment A 31,352 I,
Provisson i Loss Alkravancs {H} A5 IT
Cruarpmirs Fors pasd to holibng compasy (L& LT B57H
Seesh opwn | ¥y 5. 24% TAE]
Uhargebaciz, Rehaled, Admim Fees B} 1550 583
Sales Return for expired Choods [F3 TAZHTTA
Tax effect of Homs constiluging - Deforred tax Habilities
Difference i 1 base of propery, plant and equipesent ] Bl308 25827
Diederred wx asseis (net) (A+B=C+D+E+F)iG) JAkG, 162 14,100
A A4%6,162 30,1101
] Inveniories
Srcchi-in-Trade i BHT 58T 16, 566, 445
HhERT 2ET 146, L8hR 548
10 Trade receivables
Unsecmred, consddered goasd mnlbess silbserwiae stuted
Teade peceivalles contsdered pond 51,771,552 LL s S
Less: Prowvision o
-Trade meceivables comsidored pood -
~Trade regetvables coodil enpeined = 140 555
- 141,555
Toeal Trade recelvahbes §LITLE81 535,123,570
553 55,143,579
[There are ma ather Irade reocivables which huve sigmilscant imcrease m oredil nall, Refer pote 52 for informabion eboul credit risk and markel nsk of trade
receivabish
Thiz loss allewance on tmds revelvabls bas been compuled on the basss of Ind A5 109, Financial lesinameats which requize such allowance i be mads even for
irmde receivaiie considered good om the basis that credit sk exit even Bhoaegh i1 may be very low.  The Cospany exposare o cedin and cerrency misk nd fess
allowanse nelated so rade eeeivalle ar Esclosad in nuls 32)
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11 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Halince with banks - i corvesd accounls 4,282 314 5557 E6R
4, 7R1A14 L EET RiGH
31 March 2000 A0 Mfarch 200%

12 {dther current asscis

Advasss 1o mlaled pastss 1830 -

Propasd espense BES 4R1,.33%

Addvamoes 1o supplicns 21 1,551

Mdvesces Lo employees A A

REG, 507 T aRA50M |
13 Equity share caplital
31 March 2021 31 March 202
Sudnbsct of Shares LT ] Mumher of LIsT
Shares

Antharised :

Ceenmon Siocks of USD 100 cach 10,00 | i JLIRE Ly B0 D00
lonmedd, Subacribad & Maid op -

Common Socks of USH 100 each fally Pasd up 10,000 | 0 e [LIE ] 1,1 L0
(a) Reconcilistion of number of squity shares outieanding at the beginning and af the end of the year :

3 March 3821 1 Mbarek 2000
SNwmber of Shares [RLAN] umber of LS
hare

Mumber of shares sutsisrdimg s a1 the begirming o the year kM 1.880,000 [EIRC LTS L= CIRE L]

Add  Mumber of skarcs allotied as fially pald-up during te year . -

Liss: Mumber of shares boaght beck desing the yea 3 -

Number of ibares cutmanding as ¢ the exed of the year 1, 1,000,000 1k, [HH) 1 A0, )

b Rights, preferences and resSrictions aftes bed ts shares

The company has msucd enly one cliss of equity shares wilh voting nghls baving a par value ol USD 100 pes hars

The comparmy have nol declired ang dov el

I dhe event of Lquidslion of the company, the holders of ety shares will B entitled bo receive remaining assets of the company
Thee iheativhustios will be i progorion b the mombers of equity shares hedd by sharchalden

(¢ ) Deails of eqmiry shareholders bolding more ihan 3%

Samg of Sharchalder 21 Masch 2021 ¥ March 2020
Sumber of Shares % halding Mamber of e Baliding
Ghares
Ajania Phanmas Lid | Indua 4 e (R 10,000 b 00
id) Shmres reserved Tor livee usder options nal i Ml il

¥



14 {Mher eguity

Gemeral reserve

Hadanes al ke boginning of the year

Add - Trarsferned Froen Statement of Prodli & Loss
Habincy as ai the yeur gual

Exchange Flucuarion Reserve

Equity contribwiian from Halding Company
Employec stock options
Halanoe & 1he hegmming of the year

Charge during the yeas
Blalance ma if the your énd

Hetaimed sarnings
Halance ol the beginning of i year

Lesic Tranaition impact of nd AS 116 (Refer Mote 32)

Heuated balance as | Apnil 2019
Praeii fiar the year
Ralance ai the vear e

Tatal ather squiry
15 Lease Habilities (non current)

Lease habilities {refer soe 3135

16 Harrowings (curreni)

Working capital loans repayable oe demand from banks (secured)

fél  The Compary chismed & revolving boan Gaciliy on 12 December 2008 The Compasy bas o credit lamit ep io § 6000000, As st 31 March 2020, b Cormgpany had]
as cwtstanding halasce of § 56615921 on the revelvtng hoan facilay, The Inerest payable on ihe unpasl sulstasding priscipal belance B agel o e London)
Imagvhank Crilered R of Inenesl plus 2.30% (LIBOE + I¥Fa) Inbcresd i paad o0 montily baass. The loan facality is fully sepayable oo demand.

All the laigpble i imangible aascls of e Company arc collaigralued agasns) the mvolving ling of credil lncality availed, The mvolving les of crobi has oo
felly gusramesd by the Parera Coampasy . The Campeny pays o gussames sommbkosion ws the Parent Cosnpas: o 0050 30 af the waal ssvalving line of sradin Tisa

{reler noie BhY

17 Trade payables

Tirade payables 1o relaied party (pefer note i) 39,442,223 e
w1, ML, 112 T, 7 7890l
I8 lLease linbilities {carrent)

Lese Babilities (refer note 33) 176,449 167,250
I T, 449 167,150

19 Ovher Mnancial Habilities (eurrent)
Sales retumn for expired goods (Refer mose 14} 10,554,305 5,490,453
10,594,118 [

M March 21

{1,567 54y

1,307,702 )

49,657
Ho, 041

51 Mlarch D020

10,567 502

136,738

6,080,131

040,131
1851,071

[l PR TR

29,687
A RT

& 00 ]
M43

591,002

ASTATIT
I el M

TA50.300

255,513

5,040, 131

155,531

4521920

4%] 982

FOECH

L 501,421

§.861. 571

W



0 Onber corrend Babilities

Othars payables

I Cwrrend tas linbhilifices {nef)

27 Revenme from operalions

Sali ol prodect
Seock-in=Trada

¥ 1 ol frioity peratioes with Cafarted paries

v Bl i

Audjustmers

- D hargeiach, relatcs abd i e
- habes TeTarn

. TAker

Bale of erfuci

1 & Pwrchase of stock-In-trade (Reluted party)
. Purchase af seck-in-trade ((hors)

Invruberirs at (e end of e year o
S -meraide

Imenimsies al the beginning of the yoar ©
Tk -ra-rile

Eifewt el forcign cachengs irensls i
Swwkors-made

Totsl chusgen in invenserkos of Nnishiod gosds, norkn-posgres
Stk 0B Wb

Tatwd changes in Insentarks afl Anished pesls, = ork-in-pragress sod
sk raide o

1% Emplovee benefli expense

Salmics, wages, bomm and allrsend o
Eploee wellare expomey

Essplopee sk option expeme (refer sai §7)
Ciontribetion ks sannory Bands (refer nowe 31)

Frominsem fior b {med ol sdvance tax LISED S0, 190 (30 hlarch 2000 (LIS 9E | 4]

24 Changes in Inventeries of Finlshed Geods, Work-in-progress and Stoeck-in-

() = (AR + 0]

A1 March 231

ik | EERY

Ak JE AR

1%.22. 10

ES56.17.511

54,1751

IR B4, EE.TE]
4720
1.82,E5.67)
B850 7503

12,48 355)

{185 01.0XE)

A1 8,00 DEE)

X5, 75870
e gl S
Hi 1
1LH152%

1 Adarch T

50,23 001

81,15 10K

39130

LI TH

L1137 31n

LI D

Lk B8 TRE

A0 8
10w BB
155,36, 6
ETE AL

1, 20,44 10

16, e 24
BB, 6E 545

1. 3622350
136313 H

127540

(2754, e

I 4T
4 i gda
a5
177,550

1 E6 12




51 Mawch 121 31 March 2000
I Finange costi
tnlergs! gupsnaey Tigay A9 0Te
Inicres on Lense laftalary Srefer mue 15} 165K 4LETT
ANNer Barroaiag ooar * rr ek W7
* bnchudes Cuarmnies Communaon of SO 62500 (30 March 2020 : 50,174} {rele noie 16)
IﬁE SN
T DBepreciation and amortisntion espense
Depreciaion of propery, plant ind sgagmen! (Keler pote T) 323137 5o
Amertisaiios of imangiic mace [Heler Boie 7) 500 I3 6T
Drepron isliarin off f ghi-of-me amrts {Relon moig T) (IR ] 16T, 7T
E".‘I 121214
28 (iher Expenses
Clsning and :ﬁ:rnilﬂg M la0ld NETRMD
Fallng dspansis 084,777 228,003
IR FANCE 5. 14.048 pr R
Trnsslling e persss EEC 1M, R
[mpairmenn ks on CRACRL] J56818 - 140,543
[ieprane, ebes, & Py 300512 A
Lagal and Profosional Foos I T AE579
Paprocer made W sl e
= Auda Feed - 15,500
Repai o ohers A NER L5
Powor sad fucl 22w |
Rt i reler moae 135 - -
Wlmogllancoss papsanss WA B8 50T
b LN 56,15 Sl




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the vear ended 31 March 1021

{Cwrrency: LISD)

29.

Capital Management

Company’s palicy i 10 mamvam a strong capital base so as 10 maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to susiain futuse development of the business. Management
mionilors the retun on capital, as well as the level of dividends 1o cquity sharcholders. The
board of directors secks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position. Company’s target is to achieve a return on capital above 50%; in 2020-21
the return was 41% and in 2019-20 the retun was 40%.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' o "wtal equity’. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilitics, comprising interest-bearing loans
and borrowings and obligations under finance lenses, less cash and cash equivalents and
current invesiments. Adjusted equity compriszes all components of equity.

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below 1,00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at
31 March 2021 was as follows.

(I 1)
Farnculars 31 March 3031 31 March 2920
Total Borrowing Mil 5 GAT 521
Less: cash and cash egeivalents 4,202,334 §AST mGK
Adpasied net debd (4,282 104 j 158,247}
Equity il B,15%.11% 5520904
Adjmsbed net debi i Equity ratie A {052} (0.04) |

3n.  Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominater used to calculaie Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Farikwlars 31 March 2021 31 Maach 2020
Basic and diluted carnings per share:

Frofit sumbmable 1o Equny sarcholdorn- for Basic EPS & L5 AT 206 304
A

Al Diletive olfect an profl (LSEN 1] 1l il
Frofit snnibuabic 0 Egquity shaicholdon K compulmg C=-A-0 330,870 ERE T
Deluled EPS (LISTY)

Weighted avemage number af cquity shares sutdandimg - o 1,000 161,
for hasic EFS

Add Dulutsve effea of optiom catstanding- Mumber of E ~Hl Nl
Eupmly Shasrs

‘Weighied svernge peenber of aquiny sarcs for dilessd EPS P=D=E 1, i s
Face value per aquity shase (LFSD) 150 e
Basic carmings por share (LS ATy 258 14 25 44
Diluted earnings per shares (USD) CiF 288,14 20644

3



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continged)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

{Currency: LISDY)

il.  Employee benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits', the Company offers its employees: Short-
term employee benefits - These benefits include salanies and woges and other government
contributions which are due within 12 months after the end of the peried in which employee
renders the reloted service. The Company”™s ocorual on acocunt of vocation liehilitics
amounted wo USD 143,741 (31 March 2020 USD 111,219).

Hetirement plan - The Company provides a 400(k) retirement program for full-time
employees who are 21 years of age or older, Eligible employees are entitled 1o participate in
the company offered plan with an option to contribute up the maximum 3% of annual base
galary, For emplovees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as
determined by the Federal Intermal Revenue Service { Federal), the annual APUT contmbution
will be capped a1 3% of the Federal allowed annual compensation hmits. All contributions
are 100 vested immediately o the employee. The company also provides a profit sharing
contribution in to the 401(k) account which is discretionary, The total expense for employes
retirement benefit plan including the profit sharing contribution for the vear ended 11 March
2021 was USD 281,826 (31 March 2020 : USD 177,550).

32, Financial Instroment - fair values and risk management

Fair valoe messurements Usn

3 March 2821 ¥l Mlmrch 2024

Finanstad insirmmenis by calegery Amoribed Cost  Amortieed Cost
Fimupcial puseis

Trade reccivables S2ITLSA2 5514559

Cash anid cah sguivalens 4183 k4 3.E47 B

Total inameinl assets g 481 BT &0 0] a7

Fimangial liahikilses

Leasg labalitica 431,942 b B 1
Boarowings Nl 5001511
CFher curmesd Finsncal lsbiiies TR 5491 453
Trade payshics G ek T 22 5, TTE, Sl
Total finamcial Labilitics V4,488,519 68 535,172

There are no financial instruments classified as Fair Value through profit and Joss and fadr
vilue through other comprehensive income. Fair value measurement of lease Habilites i
ok required,
A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure o following risks ariving froan fmancial instromenis:
o Credit risk %’9
* Liguidity sk
»  Marke: nsk



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continied)
S the year ¢nded 31 March 2021

(Cusrency: LIS[N}

32.

Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Comtinued)

Risk management framework

The Company's activities are exposed to financinl risks. These risks include market sk,
crodit risks and liquidity nisk. The Company's overall rsk management program secks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company through
established policies and processes which are laid down to ascertain the extent of risks, setting
appropriate limits and controds and continuous monitoring and compliance of the same.

i Credii risk

Credit risk the risk that & counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit sk from its operating activities (primarily trade reccivables) and from s
financing activities, including deposits with banks other financial instraments.

ther fMinuncial asscis

The Company limits its exposure o credit fisks by deponting 115 cash only with financial
institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors.

Imipairment:

The following table provides information about the exposure 1o credit risk and expected
credit loss for trade receivables:

31 Miarch ki
Carrying  Wightod asverage

it il loss raie Luoas allewance

TR 52,171,552 i l
Pasi duc upao | B0 days il e Ml
Mait doe [R1-165 days Mil o hal
s cucs 366 - TI) days il i Hal
Pt duzs T30 - 1096 daye kil 10 |
Miore D 1096 dine Hil e Wil
51X13 353 bl

31 March MZ0
Carrying Wrighiod svarage

amunl loas rade Laws allwanee

Mot das 55 (=12 230 (s Ml
Past due uplo 150 days 240504 5% 140,555
Past due 181-365 doys =il {18 il
Past dlues 366 - T30 days Mil (1,9 il
Past dues 731 - 1096 days il (19 il
Muore than 1094 days il e il
S5 204,184 144,555

&



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Sor the vear ended 3] March 2021

{Currency: USD)

3.

Finuncial Instrument — fulr values and risk manageinent §Condinuwed)

The above financinl assets were not impained as there had not been & significant change
in credit quality and the amounts were still considered receivable based on the nature of
the activity of the customer portielio to which they belong and the type of the cusiomers.
There are no other classes of financial assets thal are past duc but not impaired cxcept
for Trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Trade receivable

Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions
with its approved customers. The maximum exposure 10 credit on these transactions is
equal to the carrying amount of these financial instruments, Customers are subject o
stringent firancial, credit and legal verification process. In addition, trade receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis 1o ensure timely collections. Accordingly,
the Company s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

An smpsirment anndysis 15 performed at cech neporting dite on an individual basis for
major clients. In addition, a lazge number of minor receivables are grouped into
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The caleulation is based
on historical dats. The maximum exposure o credit risk at the reporting date is the

carrying valug of cach class of financial asseis. The company docs not hold collsern as
SECHTIY.

Expected credil loss assessment

The Company allocntes each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a vanety of data
that 15 determined 1o be predictive of the nsk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments,
available press mformation eic, ) and applying expenenced credit judgemem

Exposures to customers outstanding ot the end of each reporting period are reviewed by
the Company 1o determine incumed and expected credit losses. Historical wends of
impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credst losses. Given tha
the macroecconomic indicntors affecting customers of the Company have not undergone
any subsiantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credis
bosses 1o continwe,

31 March 3021 3] Magch 2000
Ciross Carmying smodns KX ITIS5X 55 348 134
Averape Fupecied loas rate i 5 025
Carmryimg snount of made seeervables (net of inspairment ) 51,272,551 55,143,579

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables
during the year was as follows:

M March 2021 31 Nissch 2020
Halance as at the begaaning of the you 14555 Wil
Impairment Joss recogrased iner) il 140,555
Amouets writtze off 140,585 il

Halance as m the yewrend Mil 140,555




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Confinued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Curreney: USD)

3.

Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Costinned)

The impairment loss at 31 March, 2020 related 10 several customers that have defaulied
on their payments to the Company end are not expected w0 be able 10 pay their
outstanding balances, mainky due o econoIMIc CIRCUMsiANCes.

Lbigubdiny risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future
cash and collateral obligatiens without mcuming unacceptable losses. The Company's
objective 15 1o, at all limes maintain oplimum levels of liquidity 1o meet its cash and
collsteral requirements, The Company closely monitors its Liguidity position and
deploys a robust cash managemend system, Working capital requiremienis are adequately
sddressed by intemnally genernted funds. Trade recevables are kept within manogeable

levels,

Company sims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalemss and other highly
marketable debt imvestments ab an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on
financial Habilities over the next six months, The ratio of cash and cash equivalents and

other highly marketable debt investments 1o outflows is 0.05 ar 31 March 2021 (31
March 3030 & 0/

Exposure to liguidity risk

The following are the remaining contraciual maturities of financial habilives a1 the
reporiing date. The amoums ane gross and undiscounted, and include estimaned intensst
payments and exclode the impact of nething agrecmsents.

Asut Carrying
31 Mareh 2021 Amoust Comtractual Cash Fliws
Mere
i 12 12 1.8 —
men e Vidrs RSP T
Trade payshbes B3442.211 8MA41311  e3M111 il il il
guTrrenl
Barrowings Nil il il il il il
Eurrent
Lease liabilities oiem s 176,449 1B6,154 59379 il
Other carrent 10,594,335 10594335 10594335 il il il
financisl hahidicics
Tutal TEARRSIS  THAMEEW  TATIA006  IER IS4 679 Al
A al {:mrl..:
31 March 2020 Amont Sonbinetyd L2k Fiows
Slare
Tousl o-12 ,;:‘ }:f*“ than &
et wrars
Trade payabics 56, 774,965 36, 7TE. 66 36, TTE Sbb b 11 Ml Mil
frrent
Borronings SE63510  SEELSII 5661820 Ml Wil Mil
cwrreni
Lease linkilithes 200,313 500,313 167250 176450 394433 Nil
Cher corres! L4UIA8T  TARIANT  S4E)at) sl il Ml
Nmangial liabifities
Total GEAISITI  GESISNTI  GM00190 176450 285533 Nil




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Cerreney: LISL)
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Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management (Continued)

il Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates,
inferest rates and equity pnces — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial insruments. The objective of market rigk management is 1o manage
and control market nsk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
refurn. Finaocial instrumcnts alfected by market rigk include loans and borrowings,
deposits, investments, and denivative financial instruments. The Company's exposure
from market risks is primarily on account of mlerest mie sk,

al

b)

€

Currency risk

The Company does not have foreign exchange risk as thewr entire dealings are in
their local functional currency i.e., US Dollars.

Interest rale risk

Company's exposure 1o changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
short-term debt obligations. Fixed mate financial instruments ane subject o fais valuo
interest mite risk. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analvas to oo
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variahle hebd conssant, af
the Company s profit before income tax. The estimates are based on the culstanding
interest-bearing liobilities of the Company with flonting intenest rate as et 31 Maorch
2021 and 31 March 2020,

UsSh
Year Change in inleresl rale® Elrst um profi belery tay
31 March 22 +1%{ {=1%) il
31 Masch 3020 1%/ {-1%) 56,435 | (56,815)
* Holding all other variable constant
Frice risk

Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equily investments.

Disclosure for leases:

The Company have taken s premise under operating bease. The lease is for a period of five
vear and renewable every vear upon mutual consent of the parties, There are no contingent

The interest rate apphied 1o lease habilines as a1 1 Apnl 2019 15 5.50%.



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2021

{(Camency: LISIN

33 Disclosure of Leases (Comifnued)

Right-of-use assels
As wi 31 March 2821 Land and Buildings Tptal
Ush s
Ciad
A ai | Apnd 2020 Tt %0 T34, 830
Addimaons il il
Dinpemats il i
Balance at 31 March 2021 T &0 Th6, %0
Accumulaicd depresiation and impalrmest
As s | April 200 167,730 167,730
Diepeeciation 167,730 167,730
Impatrment boss mil Wil
Eleminated on disposals of assets =il il
Balanoe al 31 March 2021 135,480 135,450
As a1 31 March 2020 Land and Buildings Tatal
usn UsD
Camt
Asal ] Aphil 2019 726,830 726,830
Addditicms il il
IDrispassals il il
Balancs @ 31 Marcs 2020 726,830 726,830
Accumullsied depreciation and mpakrment
Asai | Agmil 2019 Ml il
Dreprecialion 187,730 167,750
Impairmeni lasy Hil Bl
Elimmmaled on despaosals al asscis Wl Hil
Balance ai 31 March 2000 187730 167,730
Lafrying sdinruivis
As i | April 2030 550, 100 558,100
Balance at 3! Masch 2021 Wi 191,570
As 1 April 2019 26, B30 716,510
Balance at 31 March 2020 S50, | 0 555,10




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the vear ended 31 Marck 2021

(Currency: USD)

3% Disclosure of Leases (Conrinued)

Cash outMow on lesses

Paruculars M March 2031 11 Maech 2020
Ush LISTx

Cash cotllow on leases [IF<{ L1111 {200 J0E

Tedal cash awlflow on keasey (200, 208 (200, 208

Muaturity analysis

| Patioalars Less than [hver 1 years Weighted average eullui.lu
| 1 vear inlieresd Fele s
LS L5
30 March 2020
Lease lnkilines ITE g 155,511 5.50%
¥ March 020
Lease labililies 167,250 431,583 5.50%

M.  Sales return for expired goods

LSD
Particubars 31 March 221 31 March 2020
Halance at the heginning af the year 5,493,451 50936
Add: Provigaons made during Se year 13,148 (8% 7,407, 643
Less: Amaunt writies b kit lioed during the vear =047 30T LR TERFTS
Balance ul the enid of 1he vear IIJF-I_.'!-JE A0 45%
15, Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilitics and commitments by the Company.
6. Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:
A} Relationships:
Category | - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajantn Pharma Lid., India (Holding Company)
Category 11 - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives: prl
Fd

[¥r. Ramesh Thawar Dhrecior (APLIT)



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: LS

36.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 (Continued)

aT.

B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties:

USD
:r. Parikculars Category M March 2831 31 March 3000
I. Purchase of (oody;
Apanis Pharmeo Lid, dis 1 1 7RO 46w 62,34 375
b Kev Managememl Compeanabion:
Shori Term Emplsves Hengfing
L. Hasnesh Jhawar n 451 005 A5, {1
1 Heimbursement from Ajanin Pharns 1 439,145 ®IT.230
Lid,, Indin
& Commisiben pakd 10 Ajamia Pharmas 1 &1 500 16,174
Lid,
5 Sharrd Sqrvioes i AR L il
6 Employes gteck option 1 Hé 041 45897 |
Chp Amouni ouistanding as on 31 March 2021
LUsD
Sr.  Pariiculars Cale goiy 31 March 2021 31 March 3020
o,
1. Trade Fayable ¢
Ajaevia Pharms Led., India [ 63,391,213 56,778,966
Share based payments

The Holding Company has established “Employees Stock Options Scheme 20117 (*ESDS -
2011y as approved in earlier year by the sharcholders of the Company and Compensation
commitee of Board of Directors for the key employees of the Company. The options issued
under the above scheme vest in a phased manner.

The Holding Company in 2019 introdeced o compensation scheme, to award the scheme
participants (including employees of the Company), options of the holding Company based
on the grant letier provided 1o such employees. The options have a graded vesting schedule
with the vesting date and exercise price. Each option under the grants will be convertible to
one share of the holding Company and will be convertible into equity shares only. As per
the plan, holder of vested oplions are entitbed 10 purchose one equity share of hoblding
Company of £ 2 each for every opfion at on exerciee price of ¥ 2,

During the vear 300 options have been granted by the Company under the aforesaid Share
based Incentive Plan 2019 1o the emplovees of the Campany.

(irani [hale Mo, ofoption  Ne. of Optios Exercise Price Vesting Period
Granted Cameelled
20 May H120 3000 Hil 1 22 August 2]

The oplions are granted al an exercise price which is in accordance with the relevant SEBI
guidelines in force, st the tinwe of such grants. Each option entitles the holder 10 exercise the
right to apply for and seek allotment of ome equity share of ¥ 20 each, The particulars of the
options under ESOS 2001 and Share based Incentive Plan 2019 are as under:

4



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year endpd 3§ March 202]

(Currency: USDH)

37, Share based payments (Continued)

31 March 3031 31 Masch 2020
Particulars P M
Uptions canstandsy ds al the hegimmany of the Year® &.5%00 11,500
Add Diptioss granted during the Year 1000 eli 1]
Less: Oplions excrceeed dunmg the Year 4,500 6, 500
Less: Options lapsed'cancelled during the Year - -
EEI I-l'lﬂ-'-ﬂ'ldlu a5l i Year End o il 5 SiHy

® During the current year, holding company has reimbursed cost penaining 1w options of

carlier years
Wiaghied Weighded
Range of
3 March 2021 ANVETage Average
Particulars s Fm Exercise  Comtragtusl
Frices (T} Bifie { Yiears)
[iptioms ouldanding, us ui ke
beginnieg of the vear S - s W
:ltﬂ_ Olptaaiis granicd durng e 3,000 2 2.0 VR F]
Les=: Opuges everciscd during
iy 4,500 & i0 HA
Lisw Oiptives |speed cancellad
idarmg the yran
E;Tnnf:.mmdmgultlh L0000 20 ¥ i 0 b
Partkeslars 3 March 2028 Rasgeol  Weighted Welghted
o, Exgrcin AvViTage Average
Prices (¥) Excrelae Centraciual life
Frices (F) {¥ears)
Chptions opdslaniding &= al the
Seghaing of e Y oar 11,500 20 30 0%
;ﬂ'tmmmhm 500 20 10 10
ran
Liss: Options Exercised during e i
o i, 500 ] 20 BA
Less: Optsons bapsedcancefled -
during the Ve
Erﬂmm e Yeal 4 L 10 2.0 a7

Degeription of the method and significant assumplions uwsed during the vear 1o estimate the

fair valses of the options, including the following weighted average information:

¥



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statemenis {Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{Curreney: LISEH

7.

Share based payments (Continued)

Variables ‘Wetghted Average Infermation
Flan ES0% 1001 / Share Besed Inceative Flan 2019
HHE FH) 1.0 nal o EN
ol isn apiins aping opinn e splinn
i I
26 Faly 22 Auguss 3 Dicaober 70 Wisy
Grant dase W16 ,L“:g 2017 anig SRR a0t
2h I ) 0 e |
Lam dane for sccepiance Aygent  August Seplember  Movesnber EE:': Aujus
Hl6 il L 2007 Hie 2021
Rk frec iale (%) 13 13 135 14 53 52
Expected Lafe [vears) 1804 Tl | o 2 1 I
Walmtiling (%) pi | B k| 72 1343 1374 1467
[ividend yisld (%4} 043 (E3] 043 K (R il
Price of the undeshymg
share s the markel al
; T . I ]
ﬂ"uhnurmmnnl 1478 e i) 153 1,054 (R 1.43%
i
Fuir value of aptioms [#) 1453 L 1,142 1,043 i1 f,425
Enevciss price (¥] F ¥ P 1 2 i
Valuation of steck options

The fair value of steck options granted dunng the period has been measured using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model at the date of the grant. The Black-Scholes option pricing
maodel inchudes assumpticns regending dividend yields, expected volatility, expected terms
and risk free interest rates. They key inputs and assumptions used arc as follows:

Share price: The closing price on NSE as on the date of grant has been considered for
valuing the options granted.

Exercise Price: Exercise Price is the market price or face value or such other price as
determined by the Remuneration and Compensation Comminee.

Expected Yolatility; The historcal volatility of the stock ull the date of grant has been
considered 1o caloulate the fair value of the options.

Expected Dption Life: Expecied Life of option is the period for which the Company expects
the optiens to be live. The minimum life of a steck option s the minimum period before

which the options cannot be exercised and the maximum kife is the period after which the
options cannof be exercised.

Expected dividends: Expected dividend yield has been caleulated as an average of dividend
vields for four years preceding the datg of the grant,

Risk free interest rate; The risk-frec interest rate on the date of grant considered for the
coleulation s the interest rate applicable for & maturity equal te the expected life of the
opions based on the 2ero-coupon yvield curve for Govermment Securites.



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 Marck 2027
(Currency. USDH
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18,

Share based payments {Condinued)

Income Tax

These assumptions reflect management’s best estimates, bul these assumptions fnvolve
mherent market uncenainties based on market conditions generally owside of the
Company s control. As a result, if other assumptions had been used in the current period,
steck-based compensation expense could have been materially impacted. Fusther, if
management uses different assumptions in fulure periods, stock based compensation
expense could be materially impacted in future years, The estimated fair value of stock
ophons is charged to income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of each
separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in-substance, multiple awards.

Income s (expsnss) / benelid recognized im the income sisiement comsiats of the followieg

31 March 3021 31 March 00
Curreal an
Curreni lax on profit for the year 4,851 275 514,051
Adjussment Eor currensd 1ax of preor peniods il (630,227)
Taotal Current Tax expersss 4,831,178 (134,176}
Deeferred tax sxperse(benefit)
Oigination and revers| of tming dafference (ERSE ) {39,100
Teaal Beferrod Tax expenans (3, I62.0805 {39, 100)
Total incoms tas recogmived in the iscome sEstenseal T, 16 {175, 270)
Recaneilstion of effeclive lax raie

31 March 2021 M March 2020
Avcouniing pral before moome taxes 118560 1EED,128
Enactod lax raie in USA* 1% 2%
Comnputed expocsod tan (benelia) / expenses AELOLR 717
Adjusiment for current lax of prior periods (hA0M22T)
Expenses that ane nob deductible in desermining L1 6,174
taxable profit
Expenses nol deducied in books but allowed for tax Bl (24,245) |
puirpass
Etate Taxes 27121 1559
Federal True-up {5380y Ml
Eifect of mstating openmng balance of deferred tax ]| {1.785)
Effect of instating openimg balance of currem tas, il 77500
Income inx expenses Tl 1E {175.176)
Effertive fax rale % ]

*The tax mie used for the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate applicable 1o the
Company under tax laws of United States of America

W



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Carrency: USDH

38.

Income Tax (Continued)
c. Recognised deferred sset and lakiliiy
Ielerved ran Mt deferred lay
Dielerred 153 aisel liahibises atwedi laabiBibies)
A0 March 31 1 LT £ L1}
bl March Mareh  March Warch Mlarch
2031 a1 inde L} 2028
Property Mant and cquipment il Ml 61308 25927 (61,008} (25927
Leave Encashamwent 3383 146w il will inam 4088
Provvision for Loss Allpaance 45306 27004 il Hal 45 _Lin IT s
Gluaraniee Fess paid o holding company BT 6573 il Wl AT P i 4
Steck optoa 5149  7.0E1 il Nl 5149 THE]
Chargebacks, Kebates, Admin Fees 1JO6ERHY il Wil Sl 1IN IR Mil
Bales Retum for expured goods 1,338,773 Ml il Nil AT Ml
et deferred tun assrl (Habikities) 3AP7470 BSUET 61308 25917 1436042 A, i
I d. Movemeni in deferred tax balasces 31 March 3021
Met balance Recogni Nt Mheferved Dieferred
mion 1 s Im [T 4| iax
April 20z Frofit liwhikitaes
ani bisy
Propemy  Plant and equipment (35.9IT) {15 LK1 L il (&) A0E)
Leave Encashmsent 24,3659 7,033 31,392 3042 i
Provision for Loss Allowance 27,00 18,303 45 306 45 306 kil
Linarumiee Fees pai 1o holding e
AR o, (AL LR BT il
Sicck opiion 7,081 {1, 433) 5 24y 5 249 Ml
Chargebacks, Rehates, Admin Fees bl 1,06H,353 1,065, 3R 1,068,357 [
Sales Retumn for expired goods wil LEIE 7D IINRTTS 1,550,773 sl |
Mot delorrod pan msset(liabibivies) ELRI 1597062 343,162 14T AT (] Sy :
d. Movement in deferred tax balances 31 March 2020
il balance Mecugnks M Deforeed Defyrred
asom | i i in1 saeed (111
April 2005 Prafii limhilities
and loas
Praperty, Plant and equipment il (25927} (15.927) Mil (15.027)
1 pave Focadhmem Eil TG FER T Full, e sl
Provision for Loss Allowance il 27,04 27 17004 il
CGruaranier Frees paid io kolding -
conapany 1] 6,573 6,573 5571 il
Swock option mil 7041 7,081 T8 Nl
Chargehacks, Rebates, Admin Fees Bl | Rl Mil il
Sales Retum for expared Coods hal il wil wil il
Met defemed tay ssey| abaline ) il E LAl 65 07 (25,827




Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: LS

3. Impact of COVID - 19 (Global pandemic)

The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation
of these standalone financial statements, inchuding but not limited 1o it assessment of,
Iguidity and going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial
QSRENS, Impact on revenue recogniton and impact on Jeases. The Company hus carred ow
this assessment based on available intermnal and external sources of information up 1o the date
ol approval of these standalone financial statements and belicves that the impact of COVID-
1% is not material to these financial statements and expects 10 recover the carrying amount
of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial statements may differ
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements owing
to the nature and duration of COVID-19,

40.  The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals”,

In terms of our reporn atfached
For BS R & Ca. LLP For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Charrered Acoowniams Ajanta Pharma USA Ine.

Firm Registration No: 101248W/W- 100022

¢ — 48 e —f
D:I |

Srecja Marn Yogesh M. Agrawal
Partnew Director
Membership Mo: 111410 DI ; 073673
Mumibai Mumbai

30 April 2021 30 April 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd.(Consolidated)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD and AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS
INTERNATIONAL LTD. are being audited under the local laws of the country by the statutory auditor
for the period Ist Jan 2020 to 31st December 2020, Financial Statements of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. consolidated with Ajanta Pharma Mauntius Intemational Lid for the peniod 1st Apnl
2020 to 31st March 2021. The holding company Ajanta Pharma Limited (India) follows the period 1st
Apnl 20200 to 31st March 2021. In order to consolidate the accounts of Ajanta Pharma Mauntius
Lid(Consolidated)with that of the holding company, we have been appointed by the management of the
company 10 audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD{Consolidated) for
the period Ist Apnl 2020 to 31st March 2021 under the companies Act in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (CONSOLIDATED) (“the Company™) (hereinafter referred to as the
"Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and Its subsidiaries together referred to as
"the Group”), compnising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements™) prepared in accordance with group accounting
policies followed by Ajanta Pharma Lid These Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Lid. to prepare its consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner 0 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Audiror's Responsibilities for the Audic of the Consolidated financial
statememis section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance wath the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the cthical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our
opinion.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current peniod. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial
statemments that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting
policics; making judgments and cstimates that arc rcasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemmal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensunng the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and 1o
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of aceount as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.




{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 1s disqualified as on 31st March,
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A"

(g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repont in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position,

il. The Company has nol entered inlo any long-lerm contracts including denvalive conlracls,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for matenal foreseeable
losses; and

i, There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

for G.R.Modi & Co
Chartered Accourtants
Firm' s regi ion number: 112617W

ﬂﬂiﬁ . . No
CA Swapnil Modi 107574
Partner

Membership number- 107574
Mumbai
Date : 22nd Apnl 2021

UDIN No 21107574AAAACFB326



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. (Consolidated) “the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the Consolidatedfinancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Conatrols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting critenia established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accoumtants of India ("ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate imternal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensunng the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed 0 be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemmal Financial Controls and, both i1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the nisk that a matenal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in
accordance with authonzations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial
statements.

Inhérent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenal
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the nsk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may detenorate.

Opinion

Inpuur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the intemal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chantered Accountamts of India.

Jor G.RModi & Co
{ “hartered Accountanis
Firm'sf[;gm@uun number: 112617TW
St/
Qe
CA Swlpdil Modi
Partner
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
Date : 22nd April 2021

UDIN No 21107574AAAACF8326



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet | |l
s ar 31 H'l.rr.l- 2021 |
(Curency: MUR)
31 March 2021 || 31 March 2020
o Mole MAL. Rs MAL. Ks
Assiis B
Non-current avsels ) = - 1
Pﬂ]_f..d.!ﬂj' plu.nttnd equipmenl £ 35858571 | 36,986,964
Right to use assets L 2197914 || 4395829
Fimncial assets _ _ -
Investmients 9 o | | 59,847,759
Other financialaspets 10 1,177,322 1,177 321
Tatal non-carrent assels 30,331 208 102 407 874
Current azsets i
Imvesitarics 11 186,498,910 19,500 400
Financial assets i
[nwestments 1z 200,960,158 | | -
Trade receivables 13 | 55389040 | 170,738,021
_ Cash and cash equivalents | L T3 000 || 1 50,867,568
Oher curren asscls — s 1% 1 (5, e, 03 129,225 524
Toial carrent assels 627,907,301 470,432,513
Total assets 667,141,109 572,840,386
Equity And Lisbilities
Equity . 1l
Equity share upnnl 16 EI.J‘?B o | 61,379,100
Other Equity _ 17 521 B61 460 448 051, X
Total equity 585,240, 560 500,430,396
Liatdlithes
Mon current liabilities 1
Leasc liability 18 2,469,066 4,659,026
Current liabilitics B B I _
Dmermmllhhuhm o 19 TH A1 483 58,750,964
B Tetal ﬂ:lﬂ'!l‘t lll.hlllj-n TR A3 A8 | 58,730,964
Tatal equity and labilities 667,141,119 572,840,386
Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an m!:gml puﬂdd"lhu mmhdned financial !:ILEI'M'I'IB
As per our report of even dats attached
In terms of our report aitached
For G. B Modi & Ca. For and on behalf ul' Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Ajanta Pharma (Maritius) Limited
JICATFRN : 1126
Jo ; S
Swapail Modi Yogesh M. Agrawal
Partoes { Director
Mumbal, 22 Apr, 2021 o Mumbai, 22 Apr, 2021
UDIN: 3 LieFeih ARRACFE320




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

 for the year ended 31 March 2027
{Curremcy: MUR)
| 31March2021 || 31 March 2020
Nute MAL., Rs MaU., Rs
Income I .
Reveaiue from operations L. 1470.328.967 || 1,603.802,163
Cither imcome 21 B1R66374 45,356,132
Total imcomse 1,563,195,361 1,661,158,297
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed n 12,554,680 || 21,053,389
Purchase of stock-in-trade o P 936,776, H[ 528,142,913
Changes in invenionics of finished goods'work-in-progress/siock-in-rade 4 ;IS! 1'1‘] Qllh (629 6EH}
Employee benefits expenses k=) 23,953,146 || 33,710,416
Finamce costs 26 326,132 || 461,562
Deprecistion and amoriisation expense ) 4,460, HH 5,354 897
Other expensss 15 360,113,472 | 630,231,274
Total expenses 185,414,468 | 1,038.534,763 |
Profli before tax 377,780,896 | 412,603,304
Tax expense -
Current tax 16,631,732 || 20,308,908
Deffered tax o *
Profit for the year . o 361,128,164 | 402,194,626
Twtal comprehensive income | (loss) for the year Hlllﬂlﬂ MH&
Earning per equity share (Basic & Diluted) (Fuce value MURIO00-) 0 SERI6 | 655.43

Sugnificant accoanting pobces

As per our report of even date aftached

I ternss of our report attached
For G, R. Modi & Co.

Chﬂ:ﬂdﬁmnnnu
1|C.-'.1Fﬂ‘~l JJHTT’E}"‘

Mumbai, 22 Apr, 2021

UDIN c|

The rotes referred fo above form an indegral par of the corsolidsiad financial statements

F-r and on h-e'u.l"-lﬂurt of Direciors
nhtiuu Hﬂ‘ﬂ.l lHanHIl] LHH

_-I.Ff—-f -EL-"'- chma '1
Yogesh M. Agrawal|

Mumbai, 22 Apr, 2021

Drrecior




hjanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited . _ .

Cnnmidnt!d Statement nI' CIIﬁ__m_ﬂ_'i'_l'_ N
for the year ended 31 March 2021 | -

(Currency: MUR)
| I ! | 3 March2021 | 31 March 2020
| SO S e e fen | | MAU R | AAU Ky
| A | Cash flow from operuting activites =~~~ | { . ]
| | Profitbeforea; |~ | | , 3T 78096 || 422603 54
. , Adustmen for R U
. Depeociation and amortisstion expense 1 i 4,460,393 5350897
- me_n_;________ ] | | . !2'5'.-132 ] 461,562
LUmrzalised fi ST difTerznce (2}
DErlﬂqhulﬁM before working caphial chasges ' ;n,sﬂ.m i A28.61999]
 Decrease / (| I::r:u:j in trade and othet foceivabdes | | 115,348,981 | | 8259 BR6
Decresse / {increasc) in other non cument asscts | . ! 42,508
| Duecrease | [increasa) in ¢ uther current assats | | 22359431 || (50,309.774)
| Decremse /{incrensc)inimventories | | (166897510 4,504 257
Increass / (decrease) im other current lisbilities 20,680,519 11,294,209 |
| Incresse [ (decresse] is other bong tam provishons | 1 = |1 -
bﬁn‘mlf{_dmmr}-ﬂm‘l mrmrm-uru
| Incresse [ [decrease) is trade payables I B ER RN Tr e |
| Cash generated from operations. | 1 J‘-"l.ﬁl:ﬂl 401,515,567
et income lin paid (16652,733) | (20,308, 908)
Nt eash generated from operating sctivities | | 357,406,109 || 382,207,070
B.  Cash flow from investing activithes
Capital expenditure on property, plant and eqeipment inchiding capita (1,134,085) (3,602,367
Capital expenditene on right to wie niset S | 2 (6,593,744)
Purchass of noa-current investments | | {201,560,158) | =t
Purchase of nos-current invesimenis SHEAT TS 5,033 400
 Net cash meed in investing activities | L aeAM)|| {7,167,728)
| C. | Cash fow from financing sctivities |
Repayment of lease thu-[n:lmll:gg_‘_:ﬂ thereoe) | (2,189,960} | 4,539,020
Inerestpaid | 1 {326,132) | [ 6)
___Dividend paid [2835318.000) | (436578,784)
 Netcash wsed in financlagactivitls : _(IETXIA09I) (432351.310)
| Mt inrease [ {decremse) in cash aad cash equivaleats (3674468  (57.341.5966)
B B =S | it 4y .
| Cash and cash equivaleas as at the beginming of tae { 150,867,566 | 208,209 551
c'uj-....uummm Jevts. s at the end of the yeas e 77,193,098 150,867,566
Figures in brackets indicaes ouiflow,
Mole ;

. The above Cash Flow Staterment has been prepared under ‘Tndirect Method' as 522 oul in Accounting Standard 7 (lad A% - T)

=Ctatement of Cash Flow® usder Sectiom 131 of the Compankss Act 2013,
1 Cash comprises cash on hand, curtent secouns and depesits with banks. Cath equivalents are sholb-term Balances {with an coaginal

eratanty of theee monihs or less from Be date of scquisition).

Signifscani accounting policies :
The nokes refermed 1o above form an integesl part of the consolidated fisancial statements
As per our ropon of cven date stached
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Lid. is a limited hiability company incorporated and domiciled in
Mauritivs and & a wholly owned subzidiary of Ajanta Pharma Lid., India. The address of its
registered office is located at BPML Building, Royval Road, Goodlands, Muuritius. The Consclidated
Financial statement (“CFS") comprises the Company and its subsidiary (referred to collectively as
the “Group™).

The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing and marketing of speciality pharmaceutical
finished dosages.

The Consolidated Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been reviewed by
the Audit Commitice and subsequently approved by Company’s Board of Directors at it's meeting
held on 22 April, 2021,

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial stalements have been prepared m all matenal aspects i accordance
with the recognition & measurcment principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafier referred to as the “Ind AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepied in India.

These fnancial stalements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis, except otherwise siated,

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary Ajanta Pharma Mauritius (Int'l) Ltd. The financial statements of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding
together the book values of like ilems of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after climinating
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits resulting there from and are
presented o the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's independent financial
statements. The statement of profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
gitributed o the equity holders of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been
consolidated using uniform accounting policies for like iransactions and other events i similar
circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to
bring their accounting policies inlo line with the Group's accounting policies. The financial
staternents of the subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that
of the Company i.¢., year ended 31 March 2021,

Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional Currency of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (MUR).
Rounding of Amounis

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
crores.




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

7.

Tl

Current / non-current classification:

The assets and lisbilitics in the balance sheet are presented based on currentnon-current
¢laszification,

An asset is current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

#  Held primarily for the purpose of rading, or

= Expecied io be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used to seitle a liability for at
Jeast twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A liability is current when it is:

*  Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

*  Due o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
afier the reporting period. Terms of a lbility that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
mn its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Current.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalenis.

Baged on the nature of products £ activities of the group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the group has determined its operating cycle
ag 12 months for the purpose of classification of s azsets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and cquipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated a1 historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are inchaded
in the assets carrying amount or recognised s a scparate assel as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method 1o write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
| Leaschold lmprovement 20 years

| Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings | 2to6 years |

| Office Equipments 210 4 years
Plant & Machincry 5 to 20 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

The asser's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at cach end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable
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amnount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Insirumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
linbility or equity instrament of another entity.

Financial Assels
Classification

The Group classifies financial assels as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial assel

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asseiz not
recorded at fair value through profit or boss, transaction costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition
of the financial asset,

Subscquent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categonies:
» Financial assets at fair valee (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

* Financial assets al amortised cost
When assets are measured af fair value, gains and losses are either recopnised in the stalement of

profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit ar loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprebensive income (FVYTOCT))

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assels are measured at amortised cost when asset 15 held within a business model, whose
objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the assct
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method bess impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss,

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FYTOCI™)
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as ot each reporting date at fair

value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized

in the other comprehensive income.
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Less (“FVTPL")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity mstruments which arc held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCL Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured al amortised cost or at FVTOCL Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCL, is classified as at FYTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL eategory are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assels

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Group has transfemed s rights to receive cash flows from the assel.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities
Classiflcation
The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, bomowings and
payables, net of direcily attributable ransaction costs.

Financial lLiabilities include trade and other payables, loans and bommowings including bank
overdrafis and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequeni measurement

Financial liabilities a1 fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowimngs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an infegral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition of Financial Liabilithes

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability 15 discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantinlly different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
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exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original lisbility and the recognition
of a pew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Staternent
of Profit and Loss,

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Group uses derivative financial mstruments, such as forward currency contracts 1o mitigate it
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instroments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which & derivalive contract i& entered into and are subsequently re-measured at far
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average basis)
and net realizable value, cost of which includes dubies and taxes. Cost of imporied raw materials and
packing materials lying in bonded warchouse includes the amount of customs duty, Finished
products incloding traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable
value, Cost is armived on weighted average basis,

The cost of Invenlories have been computed o include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion,
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity and other
retated cost incurred in bringing the inventorizs 1o their present location and condifion,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses necessary 1o make the sale.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued al net realisable value.

Goods and materials in transit are valued al actual cost incurred up 1o the dale of balance sheet.
Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not writlen down, if the
finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank incloding fixed
deposivhighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cesh and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-
term deposits, as defined above, net of owstanding bank overdrafls as they are considered an
integral part of the group’s cash management.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the mdirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operaling cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and finoncing sctivities of the Group are segregated.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the fransaction,




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

T

Mnml.mr_jl_,m denominated in foreign currencics at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

H.nyin_c-m&fmﬂpummumml of exchange difference cither on settlement or on restatement is
recognised i the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Revenue Recognition

Hevenue recognition under Ind AS 113 {applicable from 1 April 2018)
Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was

satisfied, Le. when “control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred 1o the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as
follows:

Step 1: Mdentify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the iransaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Sale af Goods
The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customner, Revenue are net of estimated returmns and taxes collected from
CUSIOIMETS.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipmeni of the goods to the customer or when geods i made available 1o the cusiomer.

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
eredit terms with customer,

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Vanable consideration is only recognised when 1 is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience,
markel conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology
and assumptions used to estimate retumns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

Irferest income

Interest income is recognised with reference o the Effective Interest Rate method.
Dividend income
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Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established
Income from Export Renefits and Other Incentives

Export benefils available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received.

Employvee Benellts

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such 25 salaries, wages, shorl-term compensated sbsences,
performance incentives eic. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the
period in which the employee renders related service.

i) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

The Group pays Social Security Cost as per local regulations. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefil
expense when they are due. Prepaid conimbulions are recognized as an asset o the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the firture payments is available.

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance
allowances payable under the Employment Rights Act 2008 is provided for. The obligations
ariging under this item are not funded.

(iiy  Share-based compensation
The Group has no share-bazed compensalion plan.

Borrowing Cosis

Borowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an assel that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalisad
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enlity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as
financial expenses over the lerm of borrowing,

Lease

The Group's lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the group assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
{2) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (3) the group has the right 1o direct the use of the asset.
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Al the date of commencement of the lzase, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease amrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with
a term of twelve months or bess (shori-term beases) and low value leases, For these short-term and
low value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The nght-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or prior to the commencement dale of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease mcentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a strajght-line basis over the
shorier of the lease term and useful life of the underlving assel. Righi of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their camrying amounts
may nol be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (ie. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is delermined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset docs not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from ather
asseds. In such cases, the recovernble amount is delermined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGLU) 1o
which the assel belongs,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the fure lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally sccepted mterest rate. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a lermination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
l:munfﬂw]mmrummdnﬂymmmhwmwudsufnwnh*qhipmﬁe]m.w
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Transition

Effective | April, 2019, the group adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard 1o all lcase
contracts existing on 1 April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Cl_;uun:pmlly. the
group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments _d:smmtnd at the
generally accepled 'mlm:itm:mdMﬁwﬂmmlllilammmmuﬂmmhu
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31,
Iﬂllihnwnntbmmmspmivtl}'udjumdmdlhmﬁmﬁllmmmbemmdmdﬂh
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulied in recognition of Right of Use' nsset of
MUR 6,593,744 and a lease liability of MUR 6,593,744, The cumulative effect of applying I]:H:
standard, amounting to MUR Nil was debited to retained camings, net of taxes. The effect of this
adnpﬁmisinsipﬂﬂcﬂuunm:pmﬁthfur:m,mmI'urﬂﬂtptnndmdemng!pﬂslwe.lnd AS
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116 will result in an incrense in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash
outflows from financing activitics on account of lease payments,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initinl application.

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical expedient 1o grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only 1o contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17.

The interest rate applied 1o lease habilities as at | April, 2019 is 4%
Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share is compuied by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of eguity shares ouistanding durng the
period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable 1o the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the procesds receivable had the equity shares been sctually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converied as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period prezented.

Income Taves

Income tax expense comprises currenl and deferred income 1ax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to ilems recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for curment and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expecied to be paid 1o or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country s tax rafes
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and labilines are recopnized for all temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed i each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Finnncial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount is reporicd in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable begal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on & net basis, 1o realise the assets and settle the Habilities simultanecusly.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's (ax rates and tax
laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expecied 1o
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apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the emactment or the substaniive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that fture
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right 1o set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either o settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and setile the liability simultancously.

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed eamings of subsidiaries where it is
expected that the eamings of the subsidiary will not be distnbuted in the foreseeable future.

Dividends to Shareholders

Annual dividend distribution to the sharcholders is recognised as a linbility in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend pasd is recogmiscd on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

Provisions, Contingend Liabilitics, Contingent Assets and Commbitmenis

Cieneral

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation [Iegal or
construclive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
requined to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted o its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to setile the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a scparale asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually centain
reimbursement

If the effect of the time value of moncy is materiel, provisions are discounted using a current pre-lax
rate that reflects, when appropriste, the risk specific 1o the liability. When discounting i3 used, the
increase in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised a3 a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

® A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required 1o settle the obligation;

» A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

s A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.
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Frovisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet daie.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease amangements where the
Company has 2 binding obligation at the end of the lease period 1o restore the leased premises in a
condition similar 1o inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
seitle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as pan of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted al a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
1o the decommissioning hability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusied as appropriate, Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added o or deducied from the cost of the asset.

Fair value measuremeni

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
dale in accordance with Ind AS 113,

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis excepl for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

& Derivative financial instruments are messured a1 fair value received from Bank.

& Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV)

*  Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or settle a Lability in an ordinary
transaction between market parficipanis a1 the measurement date,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market panticipants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best inlerest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into sccount a market participant’s ability 1o
generate economic benefils by using the assel in itz highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that arc appropriatc in the circumstances and for which
sufficient dafa are available o messure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpuls
and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

Adl assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair valoe measurement as a whole:

s Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

»  Level 2 — Vahmtion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
valse measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuming basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
cateponsation (hased on the bowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement a5 a
whole) at the end of each reperting period.
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For liu: purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
labilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from | April 2021.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements reguires management to make judgements,
eslimales and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty aboul these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or labilities in future periods.

(a)  Arrangement containing lease
At the mception of an amangement, the Group determines whether the armangement is or
contains a bease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,
the Group scparsics paymenis and other consideration required by the arrangement inio
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fuir values.

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases,

(b} Multiple element coniracts with vendors

The Group has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of geods and
rendering of services, The consideration paid 15'may be determined independent of the value
of supplies received and services availed. Accondingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplics
with finite life under the contracts (2s defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment andfor as Intangible assets, since the
Group has ecomomic ownership in these sssets. The Group believes that the current
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement.

() Determination of functional currency

Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency (the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial
statements of cach enfity are measured using that functional currency. Ind AS 21, “The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™ prescribes the factors to be considered for
the purpose of determination of functional currency. Management uses its judgement 1o
determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions.

(d) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination of the estimated usefil life of tangble assets and the assessment as 10 which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives'rates preseribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumplions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.
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Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining usefal lives of Intangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumplions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested foture benefits and life expectancy. The discount rale is determined with
reference o market yields at the end of the reporting period on the govemnment bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds comespond to the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences 1o the extent
that il is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and linbilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actaal
outcome which could lead 1o significant adjustrment to the amounts reporied in the Gnancial
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the inlerpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of fiture taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term namre and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences ansing between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
1o such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority, Such differences of imterpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the cxient that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asscts that can
e recognised, based upon the likely uming and the level of future laxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments,

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies'claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict
the outcome of pending maticrs with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
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Trade receivables do not carmy any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts. Individual rade receivables are
writien off when managemeni scems them nol collectible. Impairment s made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shorifall over the expected
life of the Gnancial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expecied loss rates. Judgemeni in making these assumplion and selecting the inputs o
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates af the end of each reporting period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Group has reasonable certainty of recovery.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash genérating unit ['OGU")
exceeds its recoverable amount, Recoverahle amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required o be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management’s expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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29.  Capital Management

Group's policy is to mainfain a strong capital base so as o maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the retum on
capital, as well as the level of dividends 1o equity sharcholders. The board of directors secks to maintain
a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of bommowing and the
advaniages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Group®s target is 1o achieve a return on
capital above 30%; in 2020-21 the retum was 65% and in 2019-20 the return was 83%.

Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to "adjusted equity”. For this purpose, adjusted
net debi is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations
under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. Adjusted equity

comprises all components of equity,

Group's policy is to keep the ratio below 100 end its adjusted net debt fo equity ratio at 31 March 2021

was as follows. MUR
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Debt - -

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 77,193, 100 150,867 568

Net Detn A (77.193,100) (150,867,568)

Equity B 585,240,560 509 430,396

Net Debt to Equity ratio o A/B - -

30. Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to caleulate Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share: I
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for A 361,128,164 402,294 626

Basic EPS (MUR)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (MUR) B Mil Nil

PFrofit atiributable 10 Equity sharchobders for  C=A-B 361,128,164 402,294 626

computing Diluted EPS (MUR)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares ] 613,791 613,791

outstanding - for Basic EPFS

Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- E Mil Ml

Number of Equity Shares

Weighted Average Mumber of Equity Shares F=DHE 613,791 013,791

fior Diluted EPS

Face Value per Equity Share (MUR) 100 100

Basic Earnings Per Share (MUR) A/D S8R.36 655.43

Diluted Earnings Per Shares (MUR) CiF 588.36 655.43

il. Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 ‘Employes Benefits”, the Group offers its employees Social Security Cost and
Severance Allowance, During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the account:

MUR
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020 |
Social Security Cost 2. TB8.287 628,044 |
Severance Allowance 1 50,606 115018 |

2 938,893

=
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For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance allowances
payable is provided for under the Employment Righis Act. It has been assumed that the rate of future
salary increases will be equal to the discount rate.

Financial Instrumeni — fair values and risk management

Fair value measuremenis MUR
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial Instruments by category FVTPL  Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised
Cost
Financial Assets
Investment in Mutual Funds 201,960,158 = 5RE4T.T59 -
Trade Recervables - 55,189,040 : 170,738,021
Orther Non-Current Financial Assels - 1,177,322 1,177,321
Cash and cash equivalenis - 77,193,100 . 150,867,568
Total Flnancial Assets 201,960,158 133,759 462 50 847,759 JIXTEIOID
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Lease Liabality . 2469 D56 4 659,026
Oher Current Financial Liabilitics - THA5] 483 - 58,750,964
Total Financial Liabilities - 81,900,549 - 63,409,990
Falr Value Hierarchy MUR
3 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial assets and liabilities Level Lievel
measured at fair value
1 1} 1} [ 11 i
Financial assets
Non-recurring fair
Mmeasurement
Investment in Muneal Funds 201,960,158
55 84T 759

Trade Receivahles 55 380 040 -

170,738,021
Other Mon-Current Financial Assets 1177322 1,177,32]
Cash and cash equivalents 77,193,100

150,867,568
Total Financial Assets = -

200,968,158 133,750,462 59,847,759 312,782,910

Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Lease Liability 2,469,066 4,659,026
Oither Current Financial Liabilities 79,431 483 58,750,964
Total Financlal Linbilities H1,900.54% .- 63,409,990

Level 1 = The hierarchy in level | includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The marteal funds are valued using the closing NAY,

Level 2 — The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valustion techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. I all significant inputs required to fair value as
instrument are observable, the instrument 15 included in level 2.
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Level 3 = If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
15 included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, etc. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Giroup has exposure 1o following risks arising from financial instruments:
® Credit nisk
+ Liguidity risk
o Market risk

Risk management framework

Group’s board of directors has ovevall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Commitice,

Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to sel
appropriate risk limits and controls and o monitor risks and adherénce to hmits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's
activities, Group, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all emplovees understand their roles and obligations,

Group®s Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of nsk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported 1o the sudit commitiee.

L Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financia! Joss. The Group is exposed to credit nisk from its
operaling activities (primarily trade receivables).

Summary of the Company's exposure o credit risk by age of the cutstanding from various customers

i5 a5 follows:
MUR
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 |
Mot past due but impaired - -
Mot ::L due not ;];:;:ircd B&7,264 143,616,649
Past due not impaired 54,521,776 27.121,373
- 1-180 days 54,521,776 23,973,766
- 181-365 days - 3,147 606
- more than 365 days - -
Past due impaired - .
- 1-180 davs - =
- 1B1-365 days = =
- mare than 365 days - -

a) Trade receivables _
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject 1o the Group's established pﬂ]:q,
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables, which

are non-interest bearing, are mainly from stockists, distributors and customers, Except for, one
large client, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over

a rumber of counterparties end customers. The Group has policics in place io ensure that sales

of products and services are made 10 customers with an appropriate credit history.
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An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
clicnts. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups
and assessed for impairmen! collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The
maximum exposure o credit risk at the reporting date is the camrying value of each class of
financial assets. The group does not hold collmeral as security. The group evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect 1o trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

b) Financial instruments
Company limits ils exposure io credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a credit ranking of a1 least 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ranking,
Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its exposure 1o
Varous counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk is the risk that the Group may not be able w0 meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incuming unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all times
maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. 11 maintains adequate
sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost.
Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated funds, Trade
receivables are kept within manageable levels,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rales
and equity prices — will affect the Group's income or the value of ils holdings of flinancial
instrurnents. The objective of market risk manspement 15 o0 manage and control market nsk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while oplimising the retum. Financial instruments affected
by market risk inchude loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Group’s aclivities expose it to & vanety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management commitise,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and hiabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

m) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk w0 the exient thal there is a mismalch between the
currencies in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which
these transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollars, Euro and Mauritian Rupee.

The Group does not have any policy to hedge against foreign currency exposure. In respect of
other monetary assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group's policy s 1o
ensure thal its nel exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
al spot rates when necessary to address short-lerm imbalances.




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021

MUR
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 |
Hank Balances 77,193,100 170,738,021
Trade Receivables 55,389,040 150,867,568
Other Current Assels 106,866,093 129,225,524
Net Assets / (Liabilities) 239,448,233 470,432,513

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, every percentage point depreciation /

appreciation in the exchange rate between the MUR and respective currencies has affected the
Girpup's incremental profil before tax as per below:

MUR

Year Change in currency exchange rate Effect om profit before tax
31 March 2021 +5% / (-5%) 7315610/ (7,315,610)
31 March 2020 +3% [ (-3%) 14,402,994 / (14,402 994)

33.  Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Group has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currency exposurcs that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

MUR Foreign Carrency Foreign
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March Currency
1 1020 2021 ik}
Amount Receivable 52,350,774  28E 059 885 1,170,060 6699619 EURD
93,961,429 - 2,302,920 - UsD

by Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctoate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure 10 the risk of changes i market
interest rates is Mil as there are no borrowings in the Group.

¢) Price risk
Group does not have any exposure (o price risk, s there is no equity investments by group,

34.  Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - “Leases™:

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are penerally cancellable and
ranges from 11 months 1o § years and are rencwable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some of these lease agreemenis have price escalation clauses. There are no restnctions imposed by lease
arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. The lease payments of MUR
65,650 (Previous Year MUR 40,800) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent™ under
Note 21,

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease
conlracts existing on April 1, 2019 uzing the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative
adjustment to retained eamnings, on the date of mitial application. Consequently, the Company recorded
the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the generally accepted interest
rate and the right of use asset al ils carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted interest rale al the date of
initial application. Comparatives as al and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continee 10 be reported under the accounting policies included
as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019,




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

3s.

Un transition, the adopiion of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right of Uise' asset of MUR
6,593,744 and a lease lisbility of MUR 6,593,744, The cumulative effect of applymng the standard,
amounting o MUR Nil was debited to retamed eamings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is
insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per share. Ind AS 116 will result
i an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease paymants,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elecied on initial application:

a. Applied a single discoumt rate 10 & portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the mensurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.
d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under
Ind A5 17.

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed
under Mote 21 of the 2019 Anmoal Report and the value of the lease liability as of April 1, 2009 iz
primarily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain to be
exercised, n measunng the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease
liakilities io the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied 1o lease linbilities as a1 April 1, 2019 is 7%.

The future minimum lease payments and payment profile of non-cancellable operating leases are as

undder: MLUR

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mot later than one year 1,082.272 1,736,063
Later than one year but not later than five years BA421,500 10,403,772
Less than five yvears il il

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent habilites and commitments by the Group.

Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A} Relationships:
Category 1 = Holding Company
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India {Holding Company)
Category 11 - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Mr. Vinayak Muzumdar Direcior (APML)
Mr. Suttian Deerpaul Direcior (APML)
& Relatives of Key Management Personnel
B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: MUR
Sr. Particulars Category 31 March 31 March
Ma, o 2020

1. Purchase of Goods:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 933,149.372 707,662,073




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

1,  Key Management Compensation: I
Short Term Emplovee Benefits |
Yinayak Muzumdar & Suttian Deerpaul 1 5.373,828 4 440352

| 3. Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India I 285,318,000 436,578,784 |

C) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2021 MUR
Sr.No.  Particalars Category 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

1. Advance Receivable :
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India 1 80,923 163 117321 864

—_— |

37.  Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility

The particulars of CSR expenditure are as follows MUR
Sr.No.  Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
B. Construction' sequisition of asset Mil Mil
b. On purposes other than (a) above £00,000 470,000
38. Remuneration to Auditors: MUR
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Audit Fees 568,000 640,000
For Cenification and Other Matters il 0.01

19,  Impact of COVID-19 (Global Pandemic)

The Group continued fo take into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of financial
statements, inchuding but not limited o its assessment of liquidity and going concern assumption,
recoverable values of iis financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue and on costs. The Group
has been able to effectively manage the operations 4l now with appropriate precautions, without any
significant impact of COVID-19 on the business. The Company will continue 1o closely monitor future
economic conditions 10 ensure business continuity.

40.  The Group has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals™.

In terms of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

(ICAI FRN: 112617W)

=
H«E‘D [

UDN: .
aneFsTYARARLFELLE
Mumbai, 22 April 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. are being audited under the local laws
of the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2020 to 31st December 2020. The
company follows the period 1st Apnl 2020 to 31st March 2021, In order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. with that of the company, we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. for the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 under the

companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have aodited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. (“the Company™) compnsing of the Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 3lst March 2021, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity for the vear then ended, and a summary of the sigmificant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (heremnafter referred to as “the standalone Ind AS financial
statements”) prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta Pharma
Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enable Ajanta to

prepare its consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner 5o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and

profit/loss, changes in eguity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143{10) of the Compamies Act, 2013 Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilines for the Audi of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Fthics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinicn on these matiers.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors 15 responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Compamies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect 1o the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pesition, financial performance,
(changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulanties; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and cstimates that arc rcasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that werc
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the financial statement thal give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepaning the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appheable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s linancial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are 10 oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opimion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
15 not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 3As will always detect a matenial
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
s0 far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.




(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts)

Rules, 2014,

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A"

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has nol entered into any long-term contracts including denvative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for matenal foresecable
losses, and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, o the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

for G.RModi & Co
Chartered Acconmtanis
Firm's registration number: 112617W

BV

CA Swapnil Modi

Partner

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

22nd Apnl 2021

uDIN NO 21107574AAAACGYH343



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Conirols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Com panies Act, 20013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intermal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
PHILIPPINES INC. (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuning the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance wath the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescnbed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the nisk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporiing.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
reccipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or imely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteniorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considening the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Sfor GRModi & Co
(hartered Acooumants
Firm’s registration number: 112617TW

—r——
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Parmmer

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai

22nd Apnl 2021
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc,
Balance Sheet '
ws at 3] March 221 '
iCurrency: PHI)
| 31 Maren 2021 31 March 1020
Nide PHF PHF
Asdeiy
Mom-currenl asscks . . . [
Property, plant and eqaipment | 7 1 11,839.247 | 40,845,241
Dither Emiangible et | 7 . 432060 316,204
Elight 1o e assets . T | 00 %40 il | &6, S0
Financial assels _ | il
Oxher fenancial asscts | B | 0y 119,349
Deferred tax assets (net) a 1,137 %99 1,174,376
Twial non-currend assets 33,050,454 44,132,073
Currenl sssets . . _
Invenlories [ w | 346,T75891 | 211,698,151
Financial assets . . l
Trade revervables | 1 ] 376,504,960 | 846,343,799
Cash and cash equivalents | | BLS06,400 | 206,800,859
Oither current sisets ) 13 1,506,270 18,155, 90
Total current assets 812,383 548 972,518,516
anl agiels BT AT 981 1,01 b, 5, 558
Fquity and Lisbilities : |
Equiry ! 1 - i
Equity share capital . 14 . 200,000,000 | 2 (1, e, (0
Ohibwer Egraity 15 JEE.E 14_MH Al o8 06
Tutal Equity | SEE H14 MR 621 A0 D&
ILEshilithes | |
Non curreni lisbilities 1
Financial liabilitizs | { il
Boarmewings | 16 i 10620290 | £0011,519
Lease hiability 1 1 12,157 || 1796, 593
Totsl mon-current lablbties 11,333,836 6,808,932
Current liabilities , _ Il
Financial lmbalitss | | |
Trade payabies 8 [ w® | 154,567,402 | 204, 350,654
Crbser financial Babilitics | ] | ST0506 14,182,977
Orher cument labilites 20 §2167.31% T9.914,012
Totsl current Habilities 247,326,227 389,457 641
Total cquity and liabilities BATATION _ 1.016.960.590
Signdiicam accounting policies ) p I | 4
The motes referred o above form s indegral part of the consolidated financial stulemints _ .
As per our mpmtnfhﬁlﬁl}l:_ll“#l‘ll;ld
In terms of sur report attached | | ]
For . K. Modl & Ca. For and on bebalf of Board of Directors)
Chartered Accountants of Ajanta Pharma Fhilippines In<,
{ICAL FRIN I!Iff/_?
5‘;”” Adod| | :Hll-ﬂh M. Agrawal
Pastiir __ Drisecsar
Mumbal, 21 Apr, 2021 Mumbal, 22 Apr, 2021

LN MO i




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of Profit and Loss Acconni

the year endesd 11 March 2001
[Curency: FHEF) ' '
_ 31 March 3021 31 March 2020
Note | FHP (1]
Inceme |
Revenue frumn opsratioes 21 1338.491,065 | 1478,263,201
Unthee ingoens ) 14,649,854 6,884,492
Totul isecome 1353150919 | 148%,147,593
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed T - | -~ |l .
Purchase of stock-in-trade e 938,142,457 | 764,320,580
Changes in'nm of Tinmbod ptdl‘hniﬂmlb:lm-h‘ldc 1 4 ﬂl!f_l,l?'u‘?,_?-ﬂ}l_ 18,079 860
Emplines bensfils cxpense 25 91,409,169 || 98,031 401
Finance costs . . 2,200,651 | 2,404 K20
[repreciaton & amortisation expenie | m | 9,901,780 || 10,2700
Onber capemses % 203,790,255 236,770,453
Tetal capenses LI0YT4558 || 1I3MBRS48)
Profit before ta | | MLTTEIEE | 351261240
Tix expemm . = : . ! |
Current iz | . TIISTIE || 105 M9 008
IrefTered tax 1,340,857 13,485
Frafit fer the vear 167,120,391 145,079 150
Tatal comprehesshve income ! (k) for the year 167,120,192 245,679,350
Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value FRF108-) I w | ELS6 12294
Significan accounting policies I 1

The notes referred 1o abova form an intagral part of the consalidated financial staiements | | 1l
As et out fepon of even dute smached l | I

In terms of our repont atteched |

For G. . Modi & Ce. For sad on behalf of Besrd of Directors |

Chartered Accountsnts | of Ajunts Pharma Philippines Inc.
(ICA] FRIN - HIST T} | |

(ro . %nm 5\'

— n Lo

Swupall Modi Rajesh M. Agrawal
Purimer I Dhrecior
Mumbal, 22 Apr, 2011 Mumbai, 21 Apr, 2021
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Ajanta Phanna Philippines Inc. : _ |

Shunent of :uil!'lnw
I.I'i:'-" :-'Ir.*}-rm‘ ended 31 March Iﬂﬂ
{E‘urrm:jr.- _F‘HP:I
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
| EHE | | EtiF
| A mmm-mmﬂu B T | | |
| Profit beforetax. | . . | 242,776,368 || 351,262,240
| Adjusteremt foe ) | ! | .
| Depreciation and amortisation expense | i 9,901,780 || 10,172,009
___ Finance costs _ | 2,208,651 || 1404820
| Operating cash flow before working capitsl changes | 194,586,799 | 363,939,099
Chenge in workiag capstal | | |
| Decresse | (incresss) in rade receivable . | 69,818,831 || (74,279,994
Diecreass | (imerease] i olhel Bon curent assets [ |  BSAM | _{1145481)
Diecreass ! {imcrease] im other currend sssets | | 10,5T9428 | | (11132713
Decrease | (incroase) in invemories | | (135,077,740 | 15,079 ol
_Increase / (decreasc) in other current bishilities | | (41,338, 163)| | 14,753, 720
Increase f [decrease) in trade pavables (#9.T713.358) 1&-5‘.!-'5‘2:1_!2
| Caah gewerated fram sperations 1l @ AN e, L L
| Met income tax paid I,'-'S.E!-ﬁlﬂ'.rﬁ! EIMJ#II mt
| Mot eneh oy puaireied Som ppisigecivits | | (WA ATS.T54,743
Z B mnmru-t-muunu.m T | I
__Capital experditure on property, Elhn.tl.udawmm m:h.llm,g :-lputl (45,573) | {4,958 BEY)
| Capiesl experaditure on right 10 use heset =l TR S6R)
| Met cash used in hn::h nctivithes . ) | | (S45,5T3) (7,721 .!ﬁl]-i
| €. Cash flow from fisancing sctivities S i 1l
| Repayment of nom cusrent horrowings | | 5609351 | —
_ Repayment of lease hl‘uﬂlt;-'j_m:hd:ruh_l!g:_q thereon) | | i1 084 826) | 1,796,993
Lutesest pard . { . | (2.208,651) {2.404,820)
Dividersd paid (200000000 | {125,000000)
Lﬂl-_[lll used in Mimamcing sctivities | ! (197.,684.136) 125,607 42T}
'Hmi.mw}hmmuimﬂuu | | [215,004,450) 242,425,085
| Cash and cash equivakents as ot the beginning of the year | 206600859 || 54,1757
Cash and cash equivalents s a1 1he et of the vear K1,S594.409 296,600,839 |

Figpares bn brackets indscaies cutflow,
Naote :

|. The atsove Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Tndirect Methol' as set ol in Accounting Standard 7 (Tnd A% - 7)
*Simtement of Cash Flow® ander Section 133 of the Campanies Act 2003,

2, Cash coenprises cash on kand, cerrent accoents and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholr-term balanoss (with an original|
jreaturity of three montks or less from the date of soquisiteon).

Sigrificast sccounting policies

The motes reformed o above form an miegml pant of the consclidaied fnancisl stabements
A per o report of even dete attnched

Mumbad, 22 Apr, 2021
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of Changes in Equity
Iﬁrﬁh__l.ﬂ.hl'tmﬁul'!f Afwrch 2021

{Currency: PHP) | , | | |
A, Fquity Share Capital ' ' I EHEP [
alsncr as uf 01 Apedl 3020 | Chasges in cquity share caplial  Balenco an af 31 March 2021
duriag the year
200,600,000 | 00,0001 200 |
2040040 000 | = 00 T 0
Capital [T General Share Rased Hirtaksed Foreign | Other lesm of sther Teaal Non- Total Equlty
Redemption | Premium Rrarrve Payment Exraisgs Currency compreheniive | Comtralling |
Heserve Agcount Heserve Tranabkation income Interests
Heserve

= ! R o = . 26T IME NN L . AL 31N, 83T | 390,833,837
s at | a1 - | sETRIS0 | . . A5 ETHASD | DASET A
= = S | - JMSRTHIS0 | L 5 45 ETRNED | i JAETH. LA
= = =Pl =tE | (108861 = = (1EB.BET) ! (LR R
o, | {1125, 06080 R | . s [LELE | {Ili:mi
= = ShEMAF 2 2 w._.%

i m | LAT.120.182 | = | 1&7,120.1%1
: : : T67,126.91 | : : W .| i
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Motes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

Corporate Information

Ajania Pharma Philippines Inc. i a hmited lability company incorporated and domiciled in
Philippines and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajania Pharma Lid., India. The address of us
registered office is located at Unit 710, AXA Life Bldg., 1286, Sen. Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City,
Philippines.

Company is primarnily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.

The Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been reviewed by the Audil
Committee and subsequently approved by Company’s Board of Directors at it’s meeting held on 22
April, 2021.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
{hereinafter referred 1o as the ‘Ind AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting

principles generally accepied in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,
except otherwise stated.

Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso (Php).
Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and nodes have been rounded off to the nearest
lacs.

Current / Non-Current classification

The assets and habilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/mon-current
classification.

An asset s current when it is:

»  Expected 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

s  Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting peniod, or

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at
least twelve months afler the reporting peried.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:

» Expected 1o be scttled in normal operating cycle, or

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

a  Due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
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6.1

*  There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
ll‘ler the reporting period. Terms of a lability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity mstruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilitics are treated as non-current.

ﬂptnﬂugﬂyrk
An operating cycle is the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured al cost and are presented in the financial
stalements at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment
in valee. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment at the
I:i:mllhatmsl'u incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day
SCIVICINE.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset 1o its working condition and location
for its intended use. Cost also includes any related asset retirement obligation (ARD) and interest
incurred during the construction period on funds borrowed to finance the construction of the
projects, Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been pul into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to deferred development cost in the
period the cost are incurred, Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and equipment only
when il is probable that future economic benefils associated with the items will flow o the Company
and the cost of the lems can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis o write off the cost of assets, 1o their residual
valwes over their estimated usefil Life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Condominium Units |20 years
Fumniture, Fixtures & Fittings 2 years
Office Equipments 2 vears
Computers 2 years
Muotor Vehicles 5 years

The camying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumsiances indicate that the camying amounl may not be recoverable. Fully
depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss,

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or
when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the retirement and disposal of an item of property and
cqmpmmt{clhuhﬁumml'&rmbﬂwm the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
ul‘l]’n:mn}u aabiadod in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less
sccurmulated amortization and any sccumulated impairment loss. These are amortized over
estimated useful life using the straight line method. If there is an indication that there has been a
significant change in amortization rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the
amoriization is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

Intangible assats are derecognized when these assets are disposed of or when no future economic
benefits are expected from these assets,

Financial Instrumenis

A financial instrument i= any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrament of another entity,

Financial Asseis

Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or Joss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

#«  Fmancial assets at foir valoe (FYTPL / FYTOCT)

# Financial assets at amortised cost

When assels are measured at foir value, gains and losses are either recognised m the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair valse through profit or boss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured ot amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI™)
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date an fair

value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is 1o hold assets for both
collecting contraciual cash Mlows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized

in the other comprehensive income,
: ﬁ&-m
B
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Financial Assets measured at Fair Value throngh Profit or Loss (“FVTPLY)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially s well as at each reporiing date ai fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
mstruments are classified as FVTOCI, Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There s no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income 1o profit or loss.

Investment in Diebt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised ¢ost or at FVTOCL Any debl instrument, which does
ok meet the criteria for categorization as at amorized cost or as FYQCL, is classified as at FYTPL.
Debt instruments inclided within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition of Financial Asscts

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debl instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated wpon initial recognition as at fair valie through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subssquently measured at amortised cosl wsing the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inlegral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different lerms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an cxchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the criginal liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounits is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward curmency contracts to mitigate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the dote on which a denvative contract is entered o and are subsequently re-measuned at fair
value. Derivatives are camed as financial assets when the fur value is positive and as fmancial
liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Inventories

Finished products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value, Cost 15 arrived on weighled average basis. The cost of Inventorics have been
computed 1o include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production
overheads based on normal capacity and other related cost incurred i bringing the invenlories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
cstimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearmg expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued at net realisable value.

Goods in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposithighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an

integral part of the group's cash management.
Cash Flow Statemeénts

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipls or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from opersting, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

= Im
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Mon-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 {(applicable from 1 April 2018)

Un_dcr Inq AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was
satisfied, ie. when "control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as
follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract{s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step §: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
Sale of Goods

The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured bosed on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated refumns and taxes collected from
CUStomEers.

Revenue from sale of poods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer,

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credil terms wath customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur,

Sales retum is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical expenence,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue, The methodolegy
and assumptions used to estimate retums are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

lnterest incomre
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Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Inlerest Rate method.
Dividend income

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established.
Fcome from Export Bemefits and Chther Incentives

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the vear in which the
goods arc exporied and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a Lability net of amounis already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees durng the accounting period. Shon-term benefits given
by the Company io its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-
term compensated absences, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits,

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company does not have a formal retirement benefit plan.
However, the Company is subject to the provision of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the
Retirement Law). This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan of agreement providing for
retirement benefits of employees in the private sector, an employee upon reaching the age of 60
years or more, but not beyond 65 years, who has served for at least five (5) years in a private
company, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay. No actuarial computation was made
considening that there ere no more than ten (10) emplovees who had served at least five yvears and
the tumover of employees is high.

Compensated Absences - Compensited absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaiming at the end of the reporting period. Those are included in
the salaries and wages account and are recognized when availed of by the employess.

Retirement and Other Long-term Benefits

Refirement and other long-lerm benefits costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit
creiit method. This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and
incorporales assumplions conceming employees” projected salaries. The calculation of defined
benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actzary. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited 10 the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refands from the plan or reductions in the n{m
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration 15 given
to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net retirement and other long-term employee benefits liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retun on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognined immediately Iin Il‘.}Cl. The Company
determines the net interest expense to measure the net retirement benefit liability .{m.ﬁ]' on at the
begmning of the annual periad 1o the then-net defined benefit Eahiiir)- {asset), taking inlo account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest cxpense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss.

i i i i fit
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan mcurtmlnd.ﬂ'f:m_'uhngn_:hu# in bene
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or
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loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of & defined benefit plan when the

seilement ocours,

The pet retirement and other long-term benefits liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of
which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the cstimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest rates of
govemnmenl bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related retirement and
other long-ferm benefits lability,

Share-based compensation
Company has no share-based compensation plan.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs comprise inferest expense on borrowings and other bank charges. Bormowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Bomowing cost also includes exchange differences to the exten! regarded as an adjustment to the
barrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged o statement of profit and loss as financial expenses

over the lerm of bormowing.
Lease

The company”s lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company
asscsscs whether a contract contains & lease, al inceplion of a contract. A contract is, or conlains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a penod of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified
aszel (2) the Company has substaniially all of the economic benefits from use of the assel through
the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROLT)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-tenm leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and bow value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements inchode the options to extend or terminaie the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease linbilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or prior W the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured ol cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment bosses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
ghorter of the lease lerm and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their camrying amounts
may nol be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment lesting, the recoverable amount (i.¢. the
higher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-in-use) is de ined on an individual aseed

1
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basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially menasured al amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment il whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease libility and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 1o the lesses, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Transition

Effective | April, 2019, the Company adopied Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applicd the standard 1o all
lease contracts existing on | April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to relained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interesi rate al the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the vear ended 31 March,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Anmual Report for year ended 31 March, 2019,

On transition, the sdoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of PHP
2762968 and 4 lease Liability of PHP 2 EE]1 829, The cumulative effect of applying the standard,
amounting to PHP 118,861 was debited to retained eamings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption
is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per share. Ind AS 116 will
result in an merease in cash inflows from eperating activities and an increase in cash outflows from
financing activities on accound of lease paymenis,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on mitial application:
a. Applied a single discount rate 0 a portfolio of leases of similar assets in gimalar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with Jess
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

c. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfisther the assessment of whn:h transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17.

The interest rate applied to lease Liabilities as at | April, 2019 is 6%.
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6.13

6.14

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable 1o the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the
pn-i.:nd. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable o the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusied for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been sctually issued ot
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless isswed at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for cach
period presented.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises curreni and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expecied to be paid 1o or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country’s tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed ot each reporting date and are reduced 1o the extent that it i no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial lisbilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention o scitle on a net basis, to realise the assets and sctile the Liabilities simultancously.

Deferred income tax assels and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rafes and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply 1o taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expecied to be
recovered or settled, The efMect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and linbilitses is
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax Liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to seltle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed eamings of subsidiaries where il is
expected that the earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Dividends fo Sharcholders

Anmual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the peniod in which
the dividends arc approved by the sharcholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.
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Provisions, Contingent Liabllitles, Contingent Asscts and Commitments

GGeneral

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an ocutflow of resources will be
required to setile the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted 1o its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 1o reflect the current
best estimates.

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virteally certain, The expense
relating to & provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounbed using a current pre-lax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase m the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

« A present obligation arsing from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to setthe the obligation;

® A present obligation arising from past evenis, when no reliable estimates is possible;

» A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remie,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingen! assels
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Finuncial Stalements,

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of azsets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease armangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period 1o restore the leased premises in a
condition similar 1o inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs 1o
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted al a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rale applied are
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113,
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6.17

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis excepl for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

* Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.

¢ Mumal Funds are measured al fair values as per Net Asset Valoe (NAV).

* Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a lability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a hability is measured using the assumptions that markel participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
markel participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sulficient data are available to measure far value, maximising the use of relevant observable mputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All azzets and liabilities for which fair valoe i3 measured or disclosed in the lMnancial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measuremeni as 8 whole:

¢ Level | — Queted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

= Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the bowest level input that is sigmificant 1o the fair
valwe measurement s directly or mdirectly observable.

o Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the bowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement i unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised i the financial statements on a recurming basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing catlegorisalion (based on the lowest level inpul that s significant o the [air value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or hability and the level of

the fair value hicrarchy as explained above.
Recent accounting pronoancements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2021.

Critical accounting judpements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Companys financial statements requires management o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, a1 the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty aboul these assumpiions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment 1o the carrying amount of the azsets or linbilities in fulore periods.
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(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e}

(N

Arrangement containing lease

Al the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. Al the inceplion or on reassessment of an armngement that contains a lease,
Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement inio
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases.

Mulriple element contracts with vendors

The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is'may be determined independeni of the
value of supplics received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplics and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration, The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment andfor as Intangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current
treatment represenis the substance of the amangement.

Property, Plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible azseis and the asseszment as o which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the hife
of useful lives'rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an assel may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life cxpectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on the govemment bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds cormespond to the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax assct is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences 1o the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be availsble agains: which the deductble
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead o significant adjustment to the amounts reporied in the financial
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect 1o the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contraciual agreements,
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(z)

(h)

(i)

i

(k)

differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
e such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates,
The amount of such provisions is based on various faclors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of inlerpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required lo determing the amount of defiermed tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
provability of an outflow of resources, and on past expenicnce and circumsiances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual ouwtflow of resources at o furure date may, therefors, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as il is nol possible tw
predict the outcome of pending matiers with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs 1o
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting penod.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ("CGLU")
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recovernble amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
io sell and its value in use The value in use cabculation is based on & discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumplions are required o0 be made in
respect of highly unceriain matiers, including management's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the rsks
involved.
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29.  Capital Management
Company’s policy is o maintain a strong capital base 50 a8 10 maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the retum on
capital, as well as the level of dividends 1o equity shareholders. The board of directors seeks 10 maintain
a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
sdvantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company’s target is to achieve a return on
capital above 30%; in 2020-21 the return was 41% end in 2019-20 the return was 55%.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and shori-term investments. Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity.

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusied net debt o equity ratio at 31 March

2021 was as follows. PHP
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
[Debit 11,192,796 19,154 216
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents E1,596,400 20, 600,850
Net Debt A {70403,613) (277.405,943)
Eq‘uil:.' B 588 814 308 G210, 654 06
Net Debt to Equity ratio A/B 012 -0.45 |

30. Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used o calculate Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for A 167,120,292 33.56
Hasic EPS (PHF)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (PHF) B Nil Nil
Profit attributable to Equity sharcholders for C=A-B 167,120,292 13.56
computing Diluted EPS (PHP)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (1] 2,000,000 2,000,000
outstanding - for Basic EPS _ _
Add: Dilmive effect of oplion outstanding- E Nil Nil
Number of Equity Shares

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for F=D+E 2,000,000 2,000,000
Tt PHF) 100 100
Face Value per Equity Share (

Basic Earnings Per Share (PHF) AD B354 122.94
Diluted Earnings Per Shares (PHFP) C/F 831.56 121.94 |

3L Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 *Employee Benefits', the Company offers its employees: Shnrtmm employee
henefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other government contributions wlu:h_m due
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. The
1otal consideration paid in 2020-21 was PHP 91 409,169 {Previous Year PHP 98.031,401).

Retirement plan - The Company did net yet setup a :eummntphnsjnuildmnm_hav:mmﬂun
ten (10) employees who had served at least five years. Retirement expenses are recognized upon actual
availment of qualified employees which will be detcrmined by the Emrpmybaﬂadunﬂu actual number
of years of service in compliance with RA No. 7641. No retirement costs were recognized.
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32.  Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management

Fair valug measuremenis . PHP
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial Instruments by category FVTPL  Amortised Cost FVTFL  Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Beceivables 376,504,569 - 446,343 799
Ohther Mon-Current Financial Asseis 2 70,193 . 119,349
Cash and cash equivalents . 81,596,409 . 296,600,859
Total Financial Assets = 458,171,770 " 743,064,008
Financial Liabilities
Bomowings - 10,621,390 - 5,011,939
Mon-Current Lease Liability = 714157 = I, 796 90
Oiher Curreni Financial Liabilities 52,738,826 - 54,096,988
Trade Payables - 194,587,402 - 254,360,654
Total Financial Liabilities - 258,659,673 - 198 166,574
Fair Value Hierarchy PHP
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Financial assets and Habilities Level
mieasired at fair valie
1 (1] 1} m
Financlal assets
Mon-recurring fair value
measurement
Trade Receivables - 76504, 969 . - 446,343,790
Other Mop=-Current Financial Assels . 70,393 = - 119,349
Cash and cash equivalents = &1,596, 400 . 296,600,859
Total Financial Assets = 458 171,770 - = 743, 068, D0E
Financial Liabilities
H.qrn;pwi:pl.g = LT el et - - 5,011,939
Mon-Current Lease Laability - 2,157 . . 1,796,993 |
Other Current Financial Liabilities - 51,738,816 = - O [ 88
Trade Payables = 194, 587 402 204, 160,654 |
_ Total Financial Liabilities - 158,659,673 - 305,166,574

Level 1 — The hierarchy in level | includes financial instruments measured using qunﬂnd prices. This
ingludes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as linle as possible on entity-specific estimates, IT all significant inpuis required to fair value as
instrument are observable, the instrument 15 included in level 2.

Level 3 = If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument

is inchuded in bevel 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, etc. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit nisk
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Risk management framework

Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence 1o limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Company’s Audit commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company. The sudit commitiee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal andit. Intemnal sudit undertakes both regular and ad boe reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit commitiee,

. Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal 1o the camying
amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to stringent financial, credit and legal
verification proccss. In addition, trade receavable balances are monilored on an ongoing basis o
ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure 1o bad debis is not significant.

Summary of the Company’s exposure 1o credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers

is a3 follows: PHP

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mot past due but impaired - -
Mot past due not impaired 373,387,784 438,750,191
Past due not impaired L117,185 7,593,608
- 1180 days 3,117,185 7,593,608
- 181-365 days - £
- more than 365 days - -
Past due impaired - o
- 1-180 days - -
- 181-365 days - -

| - more than 365 days :

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
in banks and receivables (except for advances to suppliers), the Company's exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors, The Company’s
receivables is minimal since no default payments were made by the counterparties. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major chients.

i Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and fusure cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unscceptable losses. The Company’s objective is two, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet ils cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.
Presently the Company has existing long-term Joans that fund capital expenditures. Working capital
requirements are adequately addressed by internally gengrated funds. Trade receivables are kept
within manageable levels.
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iil. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rites
and equity prices — will affect the Company's income or the valoe of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is 1o manage and control market risk
exposures within acceplable parameters, while optimising the retumn. Financial instruments affected
by markel nsk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Company s activities expose il to a variety of financial risks, including the cffects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, All transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management commitiee.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant mcome statement item is the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial lishilities held as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

) Cuarrency risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Philippine peso
against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and lisbilites.

The Company's transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is 100%
purchases from Holding Company m US dollar. In addition, 58% as at 31 March 2021 and 13%
as at 31 March 2020 of the Company's debt are denominated in US dollar, The Company
periodically reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates and, as a practical move, increases
its LIS dollar denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is depreciating or
decreases its US dollar denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is

appreciating.
The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:
PHP
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial Assets
Trade Payables (194,587,402) (294,360,654)
Borrowings & Other Financial Liabilities (6,491 822) (2,495,339)
Net Assets | {Liabilithes) (201,079,223) (296,855,993)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the PHP and respective currencies has affected the

Company s incremental profit before tax as per below: PHF
Year Change in currency exchange rate Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2021 +5% f (-5%) 10,053,961 / (10,053 %61)
31 March 2020 +5% [ (-5%) 14 B42 BOO / (14,842 800)

Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:
During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign

e oo ol LS

FHP Foreign Currency F
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March C:rru: H"'ﬁ'
021 2020 021 2020
Amount le 201,079,223 206,855,993 4,212,143 5.856,145 usD
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b) Interest rate risk
The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily 1o the Company’s long-
term debt obligations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value interest rate risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates, with all other variable held constant, of the Company's profit before income tax.
The estimates are based on the outstanding interest-bearing liabilities of the Company with

floating interest rate as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. PHP
Year Change In interest rate Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2021 +1% / (-1%) 111,928 /(111,928)
31 March 2020 +1% / {-1%) 191,949 / (191,949)
¢} Price risk

Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investmenis.
Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - “Leases™:

The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period of one year and
renewable every year upon mutual consent of the parties. There are no contingent rents. The lease
payments of PHP 2,149,192 (Previous Year PHP 2,053,924) are recognised in Stastement of Profit and
Loss under “Rent” under Note 28.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on Apnl 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative
adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequenily, the Company recorded
the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the generally accepted interest
rate and the right of use asset al its carrying amount a3 if the standard had been applied since the
[ t date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepled inlerest rate at the date of
initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue 1o be reported under the accounting policies included
as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right of Use' asset of PHP
2,762,968 and a lease liability of PHP 2,881,829, The cumulative effect of applying the standard,
amounting 10 PHP 118,861 was debited to retained camings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is
insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and camnings per share. Ind AS 116 wall result
ins an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients ¢lected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount ratc 1o a portfolio of leases of simular assels in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize righi-of-use asscts and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.

c. Fxcluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assct at the date of initial
spplication.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applicd only o contracts that were previously identified as leases under
Ind AS 17.




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed
under Note 28 of the 2019 Annual Report and the value of the lease liability as of Apnl 1, 2019 is
primarily om account of inclusion of extension and tormination options reasonably certam o be
exercised, in measuring the lease Bability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease
liahilities to the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at Apnl 1, 2019 is 6%.

The Company leases transporiation equipment under a number of finance lease agreements for a term of
5 years. Transportation equipment under finance lcase armangements, shown as part of “Property, Plant
and Equipment” account in the statements of linancizl position. The aggregate future minimum
ents under finance leases are as under: PHP

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mot later than one year Mil il
Later than one year but not later than five years 712,157 1,796,993
Less than five years Nil Mil

35,  Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company.
36.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 arc given below:

Al Relationships:
Category | = Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India { Holding Company)
Category 11 = Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Sam Gioskos Direcior (APPT)
& Relatives of Key Management Personnel
B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: FHF
Sr.No. Particulars Category 31 March 2021 31 March
2020
1. Purchase of Goods:
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India | 938,142,437  T68,414,950 |
2.  Key Management Compensation: |
Short Term Employee Benefits |
Sam Gioskos 1 5,373,500 4,975,500 |
I
3. Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma Lid., | 200,000,000 125,000,000 |
India I
C) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2020 FHFP
Sr. No. Particulars Category 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1. Trade Payable :
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 1 194,587 402 294,360,654
37.  Remuneration to Auditors: PHP
Particulars —— 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Audit Fees 280,000 254,638




Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

38,  lmpact of COVID-19 (Global Pandemic)

The Company continued to take info account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of
financial statements, including but pot limited 1o its assessment of liquidity and going concern
assumpiion, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenwe and on costs.
The Company has been able to effectively manage the operations till now with appropriate precautions,
without any significant impact of COVID-19 on the business. The Company will continue to closely
monitor fulure economic conditions o ensure business continuity.

39, The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals™,

In ferms of our report attached

For . B. Modi & Co, For and on behalf of Board of Directars of
Chartered Mm??s] Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
(ICAI FRN: 11261 4
B ﬂ
(Y TR0
~ Swapnil Modi jesh M. Agrawal
Parties Direclor

Mumbai, 22 Apr 2021

UDINNO: 2y e3$H ATH ACHLL3
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Lid.

Heport on the Standalone Financial Statements

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. are being audited under the local laws of
the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2020 to 31st December 2020. The
company follows the period 1st Apnl 2020 to 31st March 2021. In order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. With that of the company, we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. for the period Ist April 2020 to 31st March 2021 under the

companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. (“the Company™) comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2021, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the
standalone Ind AS financial statemenis™) prepared in accordance with group accounting policies
followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared

solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
gencrally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and

profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Awditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Compames
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilihies in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropniate to provide a basis for our opinion

L
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kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act Ths
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregulanties; selection and application of appropniate accounting
policies, making judgments and estimates that are rcasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and mantenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, ‘qut
is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a m;m:nal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: _ |
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit




(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
s0 far as it appears from our examination of those books

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid siandalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Keport in
“Annexure A"

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact iis financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including denvative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for matenal foresecable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

for G.RModi & Co
harrered Accoumtants
Firm's reg number; 112617TW

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
Date ; 22nd April 2021

UDIN No 21107574AAAACET020



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Com panies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
NIGERIA LTD.("the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the imemnal control over financial reporting cnteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and mainienance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Gudance
Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the exient applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable 1o an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemmal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of intermal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthonized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matenial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls (Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may detenorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considenng the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of India.

for G.RModi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registratjon number: 112617W

CA Swapnil Modi

Partner

Membership number; 107574
Mumbai

Date : 22nd April 2021

UDIN No 21107574AAAACET020



Ajanta Pharma Nigena Ltd.
Balanee Sheet
ax af 1] March 2021
{Cuarmency: NGMN)
. M March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Note NN bl
A
Mon-curreni asscis
Property, plant and equipment 7 5,100,778 | 18,286,459
Right to use assets |7 | 1,989,404 4,376,689
Dieferred tax assets (net) 4 1,067,068
Total non-curreni asseds | B 160,150 42 663 148
Curremi assets . { (]
Imveniories | 8 | - | 4 147 404
Finamcial psssts
Investmenis . { {]
Trads receivables | 9 | -] -
Cash and cash equivakemts | W | FB45.263 | 3254459
Other currenl assets i 2,234,004 2,450,000
Total current asscls 12,085 263 1,851 865
Total assets B 10,255,413 52515013
Egquity nd Liabilities
Equity . . i
Exquity share capital I 60,000,000 | | S 000
Other Equity - 13 (63,173.955) (32.433.684
Total equity (3,173.955) 17566314
Liabilitics ! i
Son current Habilities 1 1 : il
Lease liabalsiy | 2506617 | | 4 BER.615
Curreni lkabilithes . | 1
Fnancial biabilitics ] | 1 § |
Trade H-:hr-u. [ 15 1 = 9 856,686
Other carrent habalities S . 16 20,922,750 10,203,396
Tedal current lishilities 20922750 20,660,052
Total Equity snd Lisbilities = 10255412 51515003
Sigmificant sccounting policics ! . U
mmmmfmtdmlhm:ﬁmnmmugrdmufﬂwwwh&udﬂmmlmu | . ! -
-' ]
As per our report of even daic attached
In termis of ri nitached
F:r G :il_'h-l‘:;Eu. F-ﬂl-._lﬂ“ hhﬂ'nlm af Dirceiors
Chartersd Accountants of Ajanta Pharma Nigeris Lid.
IIE'MFRN 112617 | il
w BT L s '
Cl‘_ .;l"dﬂ'lh M A.:g:rl'lrllJ
S'Irllmil Ml e Dicector
Mumbai, 22 Apr, 2021
Mumbai, 2 Apr, 2021 T

lupiNNo.: 211074574 ARAA CEFELD




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement of Profit and Loss hﬁmnt
v the year ended 31 March 2021

{Camencys MON)
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Mote NN MM
TIncome
Revenue from aperations | 17 5487672 | 87,709,245
Oither income . o
- Total incoms 5487672 F1.719.24%
Expenses
Cost of malerials conssmed | | =
Purchass of slock-in-trade s (B.204,67T) | 640,034, 20%
i."lumplm :uwmlu'ln nl‘ Tinished goodu'work-in-progressiviock- in-irade ) | 19 4,147,406 | | (4, 147 40|
r:wbrmﬁlsum = | 20 412,758 | 514,830
Finamce costs _ | A  GIE00Z 615002
Depreciation & amortsslion experse — h | 22 10,968,535 | 15800,827.22
(et expenscs 23 22,212,593 9 456 708
Total expenses = 30,164,647 1H,2TT1T0
Profit before tax B b (24,676,375 | (46,557 924)|
Tax expense
Carrend lax 6,063,296 | (13,967,377
[I-:mmd tax - =
Profit for the year (30,740,271) (32,590,547
Total comprehensive income | (loss) for the year (30,740,271} (32,590,547
Earming Fer quh‘;r Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value NN 1/4) (In Bx) 15 (051} in.54))

Sigmificant sooounting poticics
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consalidated financial mm

As per oar repor of even daie attacked

Inmﬂll'r:rpnrllllﬂid ) ._
IF-rﬂEHdI&En

Chartered Accountants = el

| For and om behalf of Board of Directors

of Ajants Pharma Nigeria Lid.

g

Mumbai, 22 Apr, 2021




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
e

Statement of cashflow
for the year ended 31 March Iﬂﬂ
[(Currency: NGN)
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
| A. | Cash flew from operating activities _ _ (|
| Profit before tax | | , _ (24,676,975) | (46,557 924)
| Admﬁm . . ||
Dgtmuum& Mnumupn:m: . _ 10,968,535 | | 15,800,827
Inferest expemse | . . GI8,002 || 618,002
Unrealised l'nﬂ:igu l.‘-lﬂ‘l!.‘u!l: difference . ]
| Operating profit before working capital changes | . (13,090.438) (30,13%,095)
.'.'.'hmg:ﬂmmtm;cq!lul : | | 1]
Decrease [ (increase) in I:ml: I'Iﬂ-:l'ul'l'hh | | R | 184,741 803
Decrease 7 (increase) in dlm -.'l.lrr':nt ll:-l-qu | | 200,000 | 2,800,000
Decrease / (increass) in I‘TI-'I-"I:'I:IIIJ'FI-EE | | 4,147 406 | | 14,147 406)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities ! | 10,719,354 | (65,158,180)
Increase / (decrease) in trade pavables
. Cush generated from aperations . | ! i
Net i income tax paid | (6,063,296) 13,967,377
! H!";ﬂh flow generated from operating sctivities ! | _{15,001,628) | 11,341,734
"B, Cash flow from iavesting activiies Ty e 1l
Purchase of fined assels-inclading wlnE'blt lasﬂe t mj | il | {S'I,i'ﬂ-ﬁ-.-ﬁ-ll.‘.l:ll
Capital expenditure on right to use - (6,763,975)
| Proceeds from sale of fixed assets | i 24,602,431 || -
| Hltﬂﬂh nrd in 1mﬂq lnﬂrlliﬂ | | 24,601,431 (58,970,615
C. Cuhjllmr from Iiimlll m:ﬂﬂllﬂ .. o
Interest paid | ! (618,002) | {618,002)]
Repayment of lease Iu;hhrgri_mclud:nﬁ inberest thereon) (2,381 998) 4 BER.G615
| H:t-n]mﬂ:- msed in financing activithes | | (3,000,000) 4270613
| Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents | 6,590,803 (43,358, 268)|
| Cash and cach equivalents as ot the beginning of the year I 3,254 458 | 46,612,726
_Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 9,845,261 3,254,458
I-':qu:s in brackets indicates outflow,

Mote :
I, The sbove Cash Flow Statement has boen prepared under Indirest Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - 7)

*Statement of Cash Flow™ under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2011.
2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholn-term balances (with an

original maturity of three months or less from the date of scquasition).

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated finandial statements
As per our report of even date attached

In terms of our report attached

For (. R. Modi & Ca. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Iﬂhrlu'ul Accountants Ajants Pharma Nigerka Lid.
1CAl 11261

{ 1-'51::«{4I ™) s o o

VB

JWEF-:I] Modi Yogesh M, Agrawal
Partner Director
Mumbal, 22 Apr, 2021 Mumbail, 23 Apr, 2021
LD M, ¢
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021

][Cwﬁnr}': MM
|A. Equity Share Capital NON |
= Balance as #t 81 April 2030 Changes in equity share capital| Balsnce 35 a8 31 March 2021
Auihorised : ] 60,000,000 | | (60,000,000 |
Subieribed & Pald up: | el (R0 000 | - | G000, 000
B, CHher | |
Parilculsrs Capital Secarilies Lemeral Share Bascd Retaimed Foreign hther items af oller | Taotal Naon- Total Eguity
Hedempibon Fremsum Heserve Payment Enrnings Cuarrency comprebensive Contralling
Reserve Accoumi Reserve Translation imcome Imtereats
| Reserve |
As ] April 2009 ] = 1 = 1 {'P.ETE.WEJI == | 10,340 478 1 = 1 i M ﬁ'.l_lﬂ.'l = (LR
Prafit for the pericd | - | . = - | {¥1,590,547) - | = | (I - (32,590,547)|
| Other comprehensive incoms 2 5 - E e s : : :
Total cemprehensive moome | = 1 = || | = | (ST = | = PB3EINEET) Z (32,55, 54T}
Transfer o Retained Earmangs . - -1 - | {506,639) ! | (506,639)_ {5066
[rividend Paid | L | | = = | =1 | = | = |
|ALI March 2020 | : e D676376) B : o DZANsE .
Profit for the peried _ _ (30,740,271) L 0748271 ¥
Crther comprehensive income | - g - - - - = =
Tatal exanpreherdive meome B | - - 1 = ] = (k0.740271) - - (A Tam2T0H| -
Fﬂuﬁuhﬁmm&mup | - - | = | I | = 1 = | = | - = =
Driwidend Paid = - - - = . - - - -
ﬁill March 2021 - - IH‘E“ - (53,4%6 G%0) = 2 —— 1ﬂ|IEH-!-'|l . w

See nccompanying nobes ferming part of (he Maancial satemaats

T bermes of our ropart attached
For G, R, Madi & Co,
Chartered Accountanis

ncmmmlv)}
<A
T

Il.pl oddi
Partner

For and on behall of Bosrd of Directors of|

Mumbak, 13 Apr, 3021
UIMN NG . 9 11 =3 Ty Anan & § FeT s




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Lid. i3 a limited Lability company incorporated and domiciled in Nigena and
i a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Lid., India. The address of its registered office 15
located at Block 6, House &b, Howson Wright Estate, Oregun Road, Ojota, Lagos, Nigeria.

The Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activitics.

The Financial Statement for the vear ended 31 March 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently approved by Company™s Board of Direciors at it's meeting held on 22
April, 2021.

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in scoordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hercinafier referred to as the “Ind AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepied in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the histoncal cost basis,
excepl otherwise stated.

Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional currency of the Company is Nigerian Miara (NGN]).
Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
CIres,

Current / non-current classification:

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on currentnon-current
classification.

An asset Is current when it is:

= Fxpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

» Expected 10 be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, o

s (ash or cash equivalent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting penod.
All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A liability is current when it is:

+ Expecied to be settled in normal operaling cycle, or

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

e Due o be scttled within twelve months after the reporting period, or




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Litd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2021

i1

6.2

* There 15 no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for a1 least twelve months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty. result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are treated as Non-Current.

Operating Cycle .
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products © activitics of the company and the normal time between acquisition
of nssets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating
cyche as 12 months for the purpose of classification of iis assets and habilities as current and non-
current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are ncluded
in the assets carmying amount or recognised as a scparate asset as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the e can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars ' Useful Life
Motor Vehicles | 4 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the staternent of profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assels

Classification

Company classifies financial assets a8 subsequently measured at amortised cost, I['air value through
other comprehensive income of fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of ils business mdel
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial assct

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, iransaction costs that are attributahle to the acquisition
of the financial asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

» Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost

When assets are measured al fair value, gains and losses are cither recognised i the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fnir value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (ie. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for Impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is 10 hobd assets for collecting contractunl cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured a1 amortised cost using the effective imerest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Stalement
of profit and loss,

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FYTOCTY)

Financial assets under this cotegory are measured initially as well as ot each reporting date at Taar
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income

Financial Assets measured at Fair Valve through Profit or Loss (“FVYTPL™)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially ns well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognizsed in profil or loss.

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classificd as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCL Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recyeling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss,

Investment in Debt Instraments

A debt instrument is measured at amontised cost or st FYTOCL Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCL, is classified as at FVTPL.
Dbt instruments inchaded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statemnent of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial assel is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debl instruments
and trade recervahles.
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Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequenily measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fiir value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
pavables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Fmancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
averdrafis and denvative fnancial mstruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include fnancial liabilities held for trading
and financial Habilities designated upon imitial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Guins and losses are recopgnised m profit or boss when the
linbilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is inchuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition of Financial Liabilitles

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the lerms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective camrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dierivative Financial Instrumeni

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts fo mitigate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a denivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Denvatives are camied as financial assets when the fair value 15 positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

[ Inventories

Finished products including traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost 15
armved on weighted average basis. The cost of Inventories have been computed o nclude all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories fo their present location and

MNet realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses necessary 10 make the sale,

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued at net realigable value.
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Goods and materials in transit are valued af actual cost incurred up 1o the date of balance sheet.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalenis comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including [fixed
deposithighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 10 an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integral part of the company’s cash management

Cash Flaw Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wherehy net profit before tax is adjusted for the
cffects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any defermals or accruals of past or future operaling cash
receipls or paymenis and ilem of income or expenses associgted with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregaied,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are nomally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaciion.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carmied at cost,

Any income or expense on accoun! of exchange difference either on settlement or on restaternent is
recopnised in the Stement of Profit and Loss,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control" of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred 1o the cusiomer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-5tep Methodology which is as
fallows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contracl
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
Sale of Goods
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The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach.

R:\':_nur: ?s measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and taxes collected from
customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred fo the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available 10 the customer

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agresd
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or varisble. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology
and assumptions used to estimale retums are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.
Dhividend income

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right 1o receive is established,
Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions aftached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given
by the Company 1o it employess include salaries and wages and other non-moneiary benefiis,
Post-Employment Beneflts — No provision has been made in respect of employee retirement
benefits as employees are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any
pension scheme or any contracted agreement binding itself 1o the employees.

Sharc-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

Borrowing Costs

Bomowing costs comprise of other bank charges. Bormowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as pant of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of imterest
and other costs that an enfity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Transaction costs are
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Lease

The company's lease asset class primanly consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, ot inception of a contract. A contract 15, oF contains, &
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes o right-of-use asset (“ROU™)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which il is a lesses, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these shori-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments a5 an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements inclodes the options 1o extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease lerm and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carmymg amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to s¢ll and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the assel does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
azzets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGUY fo
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepled interest rale. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with & corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is u lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
coniract is classified as a finance lease, All ofher leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line hasis over the term of the relevant
lease,

Transition

Effective 1 April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard 1o all
lease contracts existing on 1 April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained camings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted s the
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generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset al its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applicd since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepled
interest rale af the date of initnl application. Comparatives as al and for the vear ended 31 March,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue 1o be reported under the
accounting policies included as pant of our Annual Report for year ended 31 March, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of "Right of Use' asset of
NGN 6,763,975 and a leasc Liability of NGN 7,270,613, The cumulative effect of applying the
standard, amounting 1o NGN 506,639 was debited to retained carnings, net of taxes. The effect of
this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the persod and eamings per share. Ind
AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash
outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on mitial application:

8. Applied a single discount rate 1o a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar cconomic
environment with a similar end date,

b. Applied the exemption not o recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of mitial application.

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset af the date of
mnitial application,

d. Applied the practical expedient 1o grandfather the assessment of which iransactions are leases,
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only 1o contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17.

The interest rate applied to lease lisbilities as at 1 April, 2019 is 9%.
Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equily share is computed by dividing the net profit attibmable 1o the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
peried. Diluled eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable 1o the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving hasic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potentinl
equity shares are adjusted for the procesds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value, Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for cach
period presented.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except 10 the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income, Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected 1o be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Couniry’s tax rales
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheel date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arsing
between the tax bases seets and liabilities and their camrying amounts in the financial statements.
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Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial Kabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied i the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and setile the Habilities simuliancously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country’s tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxable mcome in the yvears in which those temporary differences are expecied 1o be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date, A deferred income tax asset is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it infends either 1o setibe on a net
basis, or 10 realize the assel and selile the Lability simulianeously.

Dividends to Shareholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a lighility in the period in whech
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal
of constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted 1o ils
present value and are determined based on best estimale required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed ol each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate assel but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating 10 a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually cerain
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific 1o the liability. When discounting 15 used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of ime is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

s A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required 1o settle the obligation;

« A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates i possiblbe;

+ A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources 15
remasbe.
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Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets
are neither recognised nor disclosad in the Fiancial Statements,

Commitments include the amount of purchese order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Prowvisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period 1o restore the leased premises in a
condition similar (o inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs 1o
sctile the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted &t a current pre-tax rale that reflects the risks specific
o the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
sdded 1o or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113,

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

+ Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.

s Mol Funds are measured af fair valoes o3 per Net Asset Value (NAV)

# Employes Stock Opon Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actearial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a lability in an ordinary
iransaction between markel participants at the measuremnent date.

The fair value of an asset or & liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or Lability, assuming that market participanis act in their cconomic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel 1akes inlo account a market participant’s ability to
genenale economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
markel participant that would use the asset in ils highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and Habilities for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant (o the fair value measurement as a whole:

& Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites.

# Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair
value measurement is directly or indirecily observable,
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* Level 3 — Valvation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised i the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company deiermines whether transfers have occumed between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significamt 1o the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explainad above.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notfication which would have been applicable from | April 2021,

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company”s financial stalements requires management 1o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require & material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

(a)  Arrangement containing lease
Al the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease, Al the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that confains a lease,
Company scparaies paymenis and other consideration required by the amangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the natare of operating leases.

(h) Multiple element contracts with vendors

The Company has entered inio multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is'may be determined independent of the
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair valies to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounied under Property, Plant and Equipment andfor as Intangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assets, Company believes that the current
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement.

(c) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination of the estimated useful life of langible assets and the assessment as 10 which

components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives'rales prescoibed by the GAAPs of the respective couniries. Assumplions alsp
need 1o be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.
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(e)

(f

(h}

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining wseful lives of Intangible assets.
Muanagement believes that assigned useful lives are reasonahle.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested Future benefils and life expectancy. The discount rate 15 determined with
reference 1o market vields a1 the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond 1o the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations,

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax asset 18 recognised for all the deductible emporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
iemporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred 1ax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income laxes and
deferred tax asseis and lisbilities, The Company reviews al each balance sheet daie the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
putcome which could lead to significant adjusiment to the amounts reported in the linancial
slatemments.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the inlerpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of infernational business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
1o such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audis by the tax authorities of the respective countrics in which it operaics.
The amount of such provisions s based on varous faclors, such as expenence of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available agninst which the losses can be ulilised. Significant
management judgement is required o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known o
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outfllow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible 1o
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.
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Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do nol carmy any inlerest and are stated at therr normal value as reduced by
appropriaie allowances for estimated irmecoverable amounts, Individual trade recevables are
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
lifie of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market! condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporing period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recogmised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the cammying value of an asset or cash genersting unit (*CGLU")
excends its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
io sell and s value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumplions are required 1o be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, incleding management's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, leng term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved,
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24.  Capital Management

Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base $0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business. Managemen! monitors the retumn on
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The board of directors seeks 1o maintain
& balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of borrowmg and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company's target is to achieve a retum on
capital above 30%; in 2020-21 the return was N/A and in 2019-20 the retum was -168%

Company monilors capital using o ratio of 'sdjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases, bess cash and cash equivalents and short term investments, Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity.

Company’s policy 15 1o keep the rutio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March

2021 was as follows. NGN

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Debt = = |

Less: Cash and Cash squivalents 0,845,263 3,254,459

Met Debt A (9.845,263) (3,254,459)

Equity B {3,173,955) 27,566,316

Net Debt to Equity ratio AB NiA 012y
25.  Earnings Per share (EPS):

_The numerator and denominator used 1o calculale Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share:

Flr-tlﬂlllrl 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 |

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Profit attributable 1o Equity shareholders- for Basic A (30,740,271} (32,500,547}

EPS (NGN)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (INGM) B Nil il

Profit attributable 0 Equity shareholderss for C=A-B (30,740,271} (32.500,547) |

computing Diluted EPS (NGN)

Weighted Average Number of Egquity Shares ) ERE P 0, 00N, D)

outstanding - for Basic EPS

Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number E Nil Mil

of Equity Shares

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for F=D+E (0, 00, 00 60, CHOR, DD

Diluted EPS

Face Value per Equity Share (NGN) | I

Basic Earnings Per Share (NGN) AD (0.51) (0.54)

Diluted Earnings Per Shares (NGN) C/F {0.51) {0.54) |

26. Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 *Emploves Benefits’, the Company offers its employees: Shori-lerm employes
benefits - These benefits include salarics and wages and other allowances which are paid immediately.
The iotal consideration paid in 2020-2]1 was NGN 422,788 (Previous Year NGN 618,02},

Retirement plan - No provision ]Jnsb:m made in respect of employee retirement hcu:l'ls as employees
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27.

Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management

_ Fair value measurements NGN

' 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 I
Financial Instruments by category FYTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL  Amortised Cost
Financial Assels
Trade Receivables = 5 . B
Cash and cash equivalents - 0845263 - 3,254,459
Total Financial Assets - 9,845,263 - 3,254,459
Financial Liabilities
Lease Liability - 2,506,617 = 4 8ERG615
Dither Current Liabilities - 20,923 T30 . 10,205 366
Trade Payables - . . 8,856,686
Total Financial Liabilities - 13,419,367 - 14,548,697
Fair ¥alue Hierarchy NGN

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value Level Level
1 1 1 1 N i

Financial assets

Non recurring fair value measurement

Trade Recemvables - & . e oa il
Cash and cash equivalents = = 9B4526) . . 3234439
Total Financial Asseis = = DH45263 - - 32154459
Financial Liabilities

Lease Liability = = 2EO6G1T - - 4 BBEGIS
Cher Current Liabilities = = 208922750 - - 10,203,396
Trade Payables == & « w = RSHGRG
Total Financial Liabilities _— = = 13419367 - - D4 M4E697

Level | — The hierarchy in level 1 mcludes financial mstruments measured using quoted prices. This
inchades mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 = The fair value of financial instruments that afe not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as linle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value as
instriument are observible, the mstrument 12 incladed @ level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, ete. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure o following risks ansing from financial instraments:
& Credit risk
# Liguidiry risk
# Market risk

Risk management framework

Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk managemepipolicies, under the guidance of Audit Commitieg
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Company’s risk management policies are established io identify and analyse the risks faced by it, 1o set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
pelicies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims o maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Company's Audit commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation 1o the risks faced by the Company. The sudit commitiee is assisted in its oversight role by
mternal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

5

fil.

Credit risk

Company's credit risk is minimal, The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure 1o credit on these transactions s equal to the camrying
amount of these financial instruments. Cusiomers are subject to stringent financial, credit and legal
verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure imely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debis is not significant.

With respect to credit nisk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
in banks and receivables (except for advances 1o suppliers), the Company’s exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial instiutions duly evalunied and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's
receivables is minimal since no defaull paymends were made by the counterparnies. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cazh and
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is o, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liguidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.
Presently the Company has existing long-term loans that fund capital expenditures. Working capital
requirements are adequalely addressed by internally generated funds. Trade receivables are kept
withm managesbie levels.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, inlerest rates
and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market nsk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investmenis, and dersvative financial
instruments. Company’s activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks, inchuding the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management commitiee.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement fem is the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,
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18,

a) Currency risk
The Company’s foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Nigerian Naira
against the US dollar with respect o LS dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. The
Company's transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is purchases from
Holding Company in US dollar. The Company regularly reviews the end of the foreign
exchange rates.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:

NGN
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade Payables z (9,856,686

Net Assets / (Liabilities) : (9,856,686

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rale between the Nigerian Naira and respective curmencies has

affected the Company”s incremental profit before tax as per below: MOGN
Year Change in currency exchange rafe Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2021 +25% [ [-25%) Nil
31 March 2020 +259%, | (-25%) (2,464 171) /2,464,171

Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract The year-end foreign
currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

NGN Foreign Currency

Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March E‘:I“"T
2021 2020 2021 2020 o
Amiount Payable - 9. 836,686 - 25,168 LSD

b} Imterest rate risk
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no inlerest rate nsk.

c) Price risk - ) o
Company does not have any exposare fo price risk, as there is no equity iInvestments.

Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - “Leases™:

The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease 15 for a period of 12 to 24 months
and are renewable upon mutual consent of the parties. There are no mnlingcmmu.Tbehaeanmnu
of NGN Nil (Previous Year NGN Nil) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent” under
Note 23.

Transitien

ffective Aprl 1, 2019, the Co v adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard 10 all leasc
E::rnm:ﬂta ﬂt?;;*ﬂmmhpri] 1, Elﬁgi:smgm modified retrospective miethod and has taken the cunulative
adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company n;mrdud
the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments :Ihsmummi at the penerally mcgpl:ﬂ_mm::
rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since .
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted interest raic al the m::;‘
initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 hlm.r: nlut.l o
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies inclu
as part of our Annual f year ended March 31, 2019.
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Om trensition, the adoption of the new standand resulted im recognition of "Right of Use’ asset of RGN
6,763,975 and a lease liability of NGN 7.270,613. The cumulative effect of applying the standand,
amounting to NCGN 506,639 was debited 10 retained camings, net of mxes. The effect of this adoption is
insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per share. Ind AS 116 will result
m &n increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedicnts ¢lected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate o a portfolio of leases of similar asscts in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢. Excluded the mitial direct costs from the measurement of the righi-of-use asset af the date of initial
application.
d. Applied the practical expedient 1o grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases,

Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applicd only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under
Ind AS 17.

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed
under Note 21 of the 2019 Annual Report and the value of the lease liability as of April 1, 2019 is
primarily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain 0 be
exercised, in measuring the lease liahility in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease
liabilities to the present value under Ind AS 116.

The interest rate applied 1o lease lisbilities as at April 1, 2019 is 9%,
30. Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities and commitménts by the Company.

31.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:
Category | - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Lad., India {Holding Company)
B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: NGN
Sr. No, Particulars Category 31 March 2021 31 March 1020
1. Furchase of Goods:
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India i . 67801421
2, Purchase Return: .
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India - I 25,168 159,968,224 |
) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 1021 MNGN
Sr.No. Particulars Category 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Ajanta Pharma Lid., India 1 - 25,168
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32.  Impact of COVID-19 (Global Pandemic)

The Company continued o take into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of
financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of ligquidity and going concern
assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue and on costs,
The Company has been able to effectively manage the operations till now with appropriate precautions,
without any significant impact of COVID-19 on the business. The Company will continue to closely
monitor future economic conditions to ensure business continuity.

33, The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmacenticals”™.

In terms of our report attached
For . R. Modi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
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{ICAIF, R.b‘;«ij}ﬂ TW)
i, —Grn
m ﬂ__;eg
e nnil Modi Yopesh M. Agrawal
Pariner Dvirecior
Mumbai, 22 Apr 2021

8
UDIN NO.: 2ed ¥ AARALE T2



